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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 4

SEATTLE, WASHI NGTON; FRI DAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2019
11: 24 A M
--000- -

THE VI DEOCRAPHER: W are now on the record at
11: 24 a.m, on Friday, Septenmber 27, 2019. This is Volune 1,
Media Unit 1 of the video recorded deposition of Travis
Mat heson.

All parties have agreed to waive the read on.
So we wll skip to counsel noting their appearances and
affiliations for the record, and then the court reporter may
swear in the wtness.

MR. SHERI DAN: This is Jack Sheridan,
representing the plaintiff. And in the roomwith neis
Justin Abbasi, who is an attorney in our office.

MR BIGGS: Andrew Biggs, the State of
Washi ngt on and Li eut enant Nobach.

CAPTAI N TRAVI S MATHESON, deponent herein, having been.
first duly sworn on oath, was
exam ned and testified as

foll ows:

EXAMI NATI ON
BY MR SHERI DAN:

Q Pl ease state your full nanme for the record.

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com

2200 Sixth Ave, Suite 425 Seattle, WA 98121
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A Travi s Mat heson.
Q And, M. Matheson, with whom are you enpl oyed?
A Wth the Washington State Patrol.
Q And how | ong have you been there?
A About 27 years.
Q Ckay. Are you retiring in the next year or two?
A Maybe.
Q All right. \Were do you currently live?
A In A ynpia.
MR SHERIDAN. Is this an ER 43 witness? |Is
this a CR 43 witness? |'m asking about managi ng agent.
MR BIGGS: You didn't ask for that, no.
MR. SHERI DAN: No, no, |'mjust thinking
subpoena.
Q "1l take your hone address just in case.
What's your honme address?
A 4923 Cushman Road Northeast, O ynpia, Washington
98506.
Q How | ong have you |ived there?
A Five or six years.
Q What do you currently do for the WAashington State
Patrol ?
A |'ma captain in charge of our Property Managenent
di vi si on.
Q Bef ore you had that job, what did you do?
206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 6
A | was a captain in charge of our Hunman Resource
di vi si on.

Q How | ong di d you have that job?

A About 4 1/2 years.

Q Who hired you into that job?

A Chi ef Batiste.

Q All right. And were you a direct report to Chief
Batiste at the tinme?

A No.

Q To whom did you report during that tine?

A There were two or three different assistant chiefs.
Anong them Assistant Chief Shawn Berry, and, nost recently,
Assi stant Chief Mark Lanoreaux, L-a-mo-r-e-a-u-X.

Q What did Assistant Chief Lanoreaux do, as far as
you know? What were his main duties?

A So, as assistant chief, he's responsible for
several other districts and divisions. In his case, he was
responsi bl e for the Technical Services Bureau, which included
El ectronic Services division, technical -- or Information
Technol ogy division, the Training Acadeny, the Communi cations
di vision, and the Human Resource departnment.

Q Did you | eave Human Resources on your own volition?

A No.

Q How di d that come about?
A

The chief asked six captains to swtch spots, about

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com

2200 Sixth Ave, Suite 425 Seattle, WA 98121
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 7
t hree nonths ago, on July 1st.
Q Wien you say the captain, do you nean Batiste?
A No, the chief.
Q Ch, the chief.
A Chief Batiste, yes. And | was one of the six
captains that was sw tching spots.
Q Wio took your job?
A Capt ai n Moni ca Al exander.
Q And is she related to Johnny Al exander?
A Yes.
Q And by marriage?
A Yes.
Q And how long -- if you know -- how | ong was she in
the position?
A I n the Human Resource division?
Q Yes.
A Just a couple of nonths. She recently retired. So
all of captains reported July 1st. Well, | take that back.
| think a few reported -- around July.
Q In 2016 and 2017, when you were HR director, who
wer e your custoners?
A My custoners were primarily the enpl oyees of the
State of Washi ngton.
Q Ckay. And were you the highest ranking Human
Resources director in the State Patrol ?
206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON
Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 8

A Yes.

Q And were you responsible for all policies and
procedures related to Human Resources?

A Yes.

Q And all applicable statutes, |ike discrimnation,
retaliation, whistleblower, and all that?

A Yes.

Q And is it true that, in 2016 and 2017, you were a
public official within the neaning of the whistleblower
statute?

A |'d have to | ook at the definition of public
official wthin that statute.

Q Sure. Sure. And under 42.40.020(7), the statute
says, "A public official neans the attorney general's
desi gnee or designees; the director, or equivalent thereof in
t he agency where the enpl oyee works; an appropriate nunber of
I ndi vi dual s designated to recei ve whistlebl ower reports by
t he head of each agency; or the executive ethics board."

MR BIGES: If that's a question, | object to
the formof the question.

Q Yeah. And so, as you sit here today, do you recal
I f you were?

A There is language in the State Patrol's regul ation
manual that tal ks about the whistleblower public officials, |

believe. And | think it's actually the Technical Services

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 9
Bureau assi stant chief.

MR. SHERI DAN. (Ckay. Let ne take a |ook at --
so we have here a copy of the 2010 regul ati on manual that's
applicable, and we al so have the 2017 one. W couldn't find
any between. So we're thinking that it's likely that this
section hasn't changed.

So let's have the 2010 one marked first.

THE REPORTER Are we going to go with one?

MR SHERIDAN. One is fine, yeah.

THE REPORTER Can we go off the record for a
second?

MR. SHERI DAN. Yeah, let's go off the record a
second.

THE VI DEOGRAPHER: W are now going off the
record. The tinme is 11:30 a. m

(IExhi bit 1 marked for
I dentification.)
(A brief recess was taken.)

THE VI DEOCRAPHER: We are back on record. The
tine is 11:31 a.m

Q | am handing the w tness what's been marked as
Exhibit 1. And this purports to be Rules of Conduct fromthe
2010 version of the regulation manual. [|'d like to direct
you over to -- the first two pages, addressed, "Wi stlebl ower
and | nproper CGovernmental Action." And, if you need to make
206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com

2200 Sixth Ave, Suite 425 Seattle, WA 98121



johnsheridan
Highlight


© 00 N oo o B~ W N

N N N N NN P P P PP PP PR
aa b~ W N P O © 0 N O O A W N +— O

RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 10

reference to them go ahead. ['d like to direct your
attention to the third page, under Subsection C, about
hal fway down, |ess than hal fway down. And it says that
the -- actually, | have to go back and start on the page

before. It says, "Referral to Washington State Auditor's

Ofice." And it says, "The following," at the bottom of page

2, "are nethods of reporting or submtting a whistlebl ower

conplaint,” and then it has A, B, C, and it goes on.

Under Subsection D, it says, "Directly to any state

governnment public official to receive and docunent
whi st | ebl ower conplaints,” and then it defines a public
of ficial.
And then if you look at No. 3 it says,
"Whi st | ebl ower conpl aints received by the deputy chief,

O fice of Professional Standards commander, or the Hunan

Resour ces divi sion conmander shall be forwarded to the State

Auditor's Ofice in 15 days."
Wul d you agree that the Human Resource division
commander in 2016 and 2017 was you?
MR BIGES: Objection. Objection to form of
t he question.
Q You can answer.
A Yes, | was the Human Resource division conmander
2016 and 2017.
Q Ckay. Geat. Al right.

in

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com
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Did there cone a tine that you | earned that Trooper
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Sant huff was conplaining that he was being retaliated

agai nst ?
A Yes.
Q And is it fair to say that was in 20167
A | don't remenber exactly.
Q Do you renenber how the information cane to you?
A | don't specifically renenber at this tinme, no.

Q Ckay. And is it fair to say that -- you're aware
that he actually transferred, right?

A Can you clarify that?

Q Yeah. 1'Il say it a different way.

It's true, is it not, that you net with Trooper
Santhuff at his exit interview? It was you and | think
Li eut enant Mat agi .

A Mat agi .
Q Ckay. Thank you.

And it's true, is it not, that, at that tinme, he
explained to you facts about the sexual m sconduct incident
I nvol vi ng Li eut enant Nobach?

A Nobach.

Q Nobach, vyes.
MR BIGES: (bjection to formof the question.
Go ahead.

Q You can answer.

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON
Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 12

A | vaguely renmenber that, yes.
Q Ckay. And before he told you about that, had you

been aware of it?

A | don't remenber.
Q Ckay. Did you have any conversations with -- is it
captain or chief -- Captain A exander about Santhuff and his

retaliation conplaints in 20167

A | had conversations with at the time Captain Johnny
Al exander, yes.

Q Ckay.

A | don't recall the conversation | had with Trooper
Sant huff very well and whether those conversations with
Captai n Al exander were before or after that.

Q Can you tell us, what did Captain Al exander say to
you?

A | don't recall those conversations specifically
ei ther, yeah

Q Ckay. Is it fair to say you understood, in talking
to Captain Al exander, that Trooper Santhuff had nmade various
cl ai ms about inproper actions?

A Yes, it's fair to say that.

Q Al right. D d you ever do a whistleblower intake
for hinf

A |''mnot sure what that term "whistlebl ower intake"

means.

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 13

Q Ckay. So let's take a ook at the exhibit again.
So | ooking at the third page.

A Yes.

Q It says that, "Wistleblower conplaints received by
the deputy chief or the Human Resource division comuander

shall be forwarded to the State Auditor's O fice within 15

days." Did you ever forward any information about conplaints
made by Trooper Santhuff -- whether or not they came to you
from Captain Al exander -- did you ever forward anything to

the State Auditor's O fice?

A Not that | recall, no.

Q Ckay. Would you agree that if -- do you have an
under standi ng of the definition of inproper governnental
action?

MR BIGES: Objection to formof the question.

A That's a particularly relevant question these days.
It's pretty broad, too.

Q It is. So take a |look at page 1 of the exhibit,
under subsection policy, and then Item No. A-4. It says,

"1 mproper governnmental action is defined as any action by an
enpl oyee undertaken in the performance of the enpl oyee's
official duties that is a gross waste of public funds, a
violation of federal or state law or rules, is of substantial
and specific danger to the public health, gross

m smanagenent ," and then there's a section about scientific

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 14

opi nions that doesn't apply.

But during the time that you were in charge of
Human Resources, to your know edge, did any such
whi st | ebl ower conpl aint -- any conplaints of inproper
governnental action reach your desk and get forwarded?

A Sure.

Not that | recall, to the level that's described
her e.

Q Ckay. Wuld you agree that a claimof sexua
harassnent m ght be considered a violation of federal and
state | aw under 4(b)?

MR BIGES: Objection to formof the question.

A Coul d you ask that again, please. | was trying to
read at the sanme tine.

Q Sure. Wuld you agree that a claimof sexua
harassnment at work by a state enpl oyee would be considered to
fall under 4(b), that it would be in violation of federal or
state | aw?

MR, BIGGS: Sane objection.

A Yeah, so a claimof sexual harassnent, not
necessarily.

Q Ckay. And that would be -- have you had to address
that issue in the whistleblower context during the time
you' ve been HR nmnager?

A What do you nean?

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 15

Q Have you had to nake any deci sions about whether or
not a particular claimthat's come to you sort of rose to the
| evel of a whistleblower clainf

A Not that | recall, no.

Q Fair enough. Al right.

So | know this is pushing the tinme of barrier quite
a bit, but could you tell us everything that you renmenber
t hat Captain Al exander told you about Santhuff's conpl aints.

A | don't remenber nuch. They were consulting-type
of neetings.

Q Ckay. So he was asking you for advice?

A Yeah, | think that's fair.

Q All right. Dd he bring to your attention that at
any time that Trooper Santhuff had alleged that his inmediate
boss, Lieutenant Nobach, was retaliating against himfor
havi ng spoken out about sexual harassnent?

A Did Captain Al exander tell ne that?

Q Yeah.

A | believe so, yes.

Q Ckay. Al right. And is it fair to say that that
happened in 20167

A | don't recall.

Q You don't recall what nonth it was?

A Correct.

Q And was that nore than one neeting or one neeting?

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 16

A There was nore than one.

Q Ckay. Do you docunent any of those type of
meetings?

A Sonet i nmes, yes.

Q If you did docunment the neeting, where would you
have docunented it?

A | woul d have docunmented that in a conputer program
that we refer to as Renedy.

Q Ckay.

A And we have a harassnent file within there.

Q Ckay. And so who had the authority to start a
particular file?

A Mysel f, Lieutenant Matagi, Dr. Lastimto, and Deb
Ti ndal | .

Q And are those all Human Resource personnel ?

A Correct.

Q Are any of themcivilians, as opposed to State
Patrol ?

A Yes.

Q Whi ch ones?

A Mysel f and Li eutenant Matagi are conm ssioned, and
Dr. Lastimato and Deb Tindall are civilians.

Q In this case, do you recall whether or not you
started a harassnent file?

A There was a file created, yes.

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 17

Q Pertaining to Sant huff?

A Correct.

Q Did you create it?

A | don't remenber.

Q So having created the file, under your policies and
procedures, is there any obligation to investigate?

A So the Human Resource division doesn't do
I nvestigations into policy violations. Qur role is to ensure
t he enpl oyees are safe. The O fice of Professional Standards
Is the entity wthin the Washington State Patrol that
conducts investigations, |ooking for or determning if
there's a policy violation.

Q |'s there any requirenent that HR have any oversi ght
of their investigations?

A There's no requirenent that there's oversight by
HR. There is certainly coordination and conmuni cati on.

Q Ckay. Al right. | wanted to show you -- we don't
need to mark them as exhi bits because they're already
exhibits, but -- so we've deposed Captain Al exander, and this
Is Exhibits 4 and 3 fromthat deposition. These things are
referred to as 095s. Does that have neaning for you, an 0957

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Let ne give you a chance to read both of
them It's fairly quick, and then | et nme know when you' ve

had a chance to | ook.
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 18
A Ckay.
Q Al right. Have you ever seen these docunents
bef or e?
A Yes.

Q Ckay. Could you tell us when.

A Wl |, shortly after they were issued, so to speak,
| think they were provided to the Human Resource division to
include in the file that | referred to in Renedy.

Q Ckay. So, basically, is it fair to say that the
harassnent file you' ve been di scussing was probably created
way back in March of 20167

A Yes, it's fair to say that.

Q Do these files have nanes on thenf

A They have nanes within them They have a tracking
nunber. Yes.

Q So what I'mtrying to understand --

A Yes.

Q Was it created identifying Trooper Santhuff as the
person who is allegedly the victinf

A | don't recall. There are different roles for
i ndividuals within each file. It's a conputer dropdown. And
| don't recall the role that was given to Trooper Santhuff in
this particular incident.

Q Do you al so get involved in | abor-related issues as

t he Human Resource director?
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RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON
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A Yes.

Q So one of the questions | have is: D d you have an
understanding that it was Captain Al exander who nmade the
decision to provide these 095s to Ms. Biscay and to
Li eut enant Nobach?

A | don't remenber that specifically.

Q Is it true, based on your understanding of the
contracts with the various unions, that, once A exander gave
Nobach this 095, Nobach could not be further disciplined?

A So this is not considered a formof discipline in
the contract. So there's sone granularity in that question.

Q Ckay. So it's sort of like, inthe law, we talk
about doubl e jeopardy?

A Yes.

Q Can an 095 have a double jeopardy effect on nore
serious punishnent in your experience?

MR BIGES: Objection to formof the question.

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Did Alexander talk to you about his intent
to give this so that no additional discipline could be given?

MR BIGES: Objection to formof the question.

A | don't recall that.

Q All right. Can you tell us whether or not you were
consul ted before the 095s were given?

A | don't renenber.
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Q Do you recall whether or not the way that -- do you
recal | whether or not Al exander presented to you a picture of
Ms. Biscay basically rubbing her breasts into the head of
Li eut enant Nobach?

A I's the question: Do | recall Captain Al exander
relaying that?

Q Yes.

A | believe so.

Q And do you recall whether or not he had suggested
whet her there was an appropriate |evel of discipline that
ought to be applied?

A | do not recall that.

Q Does your organi zation do any investigations as HR?

A So, again, the term"investigation" is sonething
that's typically reserved for the Ofice of Professional
Standards in the State Patrol. Again, our role is to ensure
safety. So we will nmake phone calls to enpl oyees and to
people involved in that effort. So | don't know if you cal
that an investigation or not.

Q Fai r enough.

Have you ever been a whi stl ebl ower?

A | don't think so, no.

Q Ckay. Fair enough. Ckay.

Have you yourself personally w tnessed any abuse of

power within your organization that you reported?

206.583.8711 Marlis J. DeJongh & Associates www.marlisdejongh.com

2200 Sixth Ave, Suite 425 Seattle, WA 98121



johnsheridan
Highlight


© 00 N oo o B~ O wWw NP

N N N N NN P B P PR PR PR
O N W N P O © 0 N O O M W N B O

RYAN SANTHUFF vs STATE OF WASHINGTON

Matheson, Captain Travis - September 27, 2019 Page 21
A No.
Q Have you ever been disciplined for anything?
A Yes.
Q What type of things?
A Boy, | believe | had a courtesy conplaint when |

was a trooper.

Q Meaning that a citizen said that you weren't
courteous?

A Correct.

Q Ckay.

A And | think | had a speeding conplaint as a
trooper, neaning that sonmeone called in that they saw a fast
patrol car and it was ne.

Q Ckay.

A | think that's it.

Q Ckay. And since you' ve gotten up to captain,
anything as a captain or lieutenant or any of that?

A No. [|'ve nade m stakes, but | have not been
formal Iy disciplined.

Q Ckay. Fair enough.

Let nme just show you the 2017 one, since that wll

hel p cl ose the circle.

A Yeah.
(IExhi bit 2| marked for
i dentification.)
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Q So the 2017 one, it's again on page 3.
A Yes.
Q And it says at the bottom Item3, is,
“Whi st | ebl ower conpl aints received by the deputy chief,
O fice of Professional Standards, or Human Resource divi sion
commander shall be forwarded to the State Auditor's Ofice."

So we concluded fromthat that probably between
2010 and 2017 this regul ation had not been changed.

Do you have any know edge that this itemthat |'ve
just read to you may have fallen out of grace in 2016 or sone
other time?

A | do not.
MR. SHERI DAN: Ckay. Thanks. All right.
Let's take a quick break.
MR BIGGES: kay.
THE VI DEOGRAPHER: We are going off record.
The time nowis 11:48 a. m
(A brief recess was taken.)
THE VI DEOCCRAPHER: We are back on record.
The tine is 11:50 a. m
Q As HR manager, have you ever had a situation where
a manager told an enpl oyee that they should not go outside of
their organi zation to make a conpl aint?
MR BIGES: Objection to formof the question.
A Can you be nore specific?
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Q Sur e.
A Li ke give nme an exanpl e?
Q Yeah.
So there's been sone testinony that Trooper

Sant huff was basically told to sort of not repeat these

al l egations outside of our little -- outside of Aviation.
A Ckay.
Q |s there any policy or procedure that would

prohi bit himfrom doing that?
MR BIGES: Objection to formof the question.

A No.
Q In fact, isn't there a duty anong -- all the way up
t hrough the supervisory chain -- that, if they hear about

sexual harassment, they need to report it?

A Yes.

Q How about, are there any policies or procedures
t hat woul d prohibit an enpl oyee fromgoing to the nedia if
they wanted to, that you know of ?

A We do have policies regardi ng enpl oyee interaction
wth the nedia, yes.

Q Wiere woul d they be found?

A They're in the regulation manual at the State

Q Al right.

A. Not the sections we have here.
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Q Are you famliar with them that you could

sunmari ze t henf?

A |''mnot confortable doing that. Sorry.
Q Sur e.
A No, |I'mnot famliar enough, no.

MR, SHERIDAN:. That's an honest answer. Thank
you. All right. | have no further questions. Thanks for
your tine.

MR, BIGES: No questions. Thank you.

Signature is reserved.

THE VI DEOCRAPHER: One second. | wll take us
off record. Al right. That concludes the video deposition
of Travis Matheson.

W are now going off record at 11:52 a.m

(Signature reserved.)

(Deposition concluded at 11:52 a.m)
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AFFI DAVI T

STATE OF WASHI NGTON )
) ss.
COUNTY OF KI NG )

|, CAPTAI N TRAVI S MATHESON, hereby decl are under
penalty of perjury that | have read the foregoing deposition
and that the testinony contained herein is a true and correct

transcript of ny testinony, noting the corrections attached.

CAPTAI N TRAVI S MATHESON

Dat e:
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CERTI FI CATE

STATE OF WASHI NGTON )
) ss
COUNTY OF KI NG )

I, the undersigned Washi ngton Certified Court
Reporter, pursuant to RCW 5. 28. 010, authorized to adm ni ster
oaths and affirmations in and for the State of Wshi ngton, do
hereby certify: That the foregoing deposition of the w tness
named herein was taken stenographically before nme and reduced
to a typed fornmat under ny direction;

That, according to CR 30(e), the witness was given
the opportunity to exam ne, read and sign the deposition
after sane was transcribed, unless indicated in the record
that the revi ew was wai ved,;

That | amnot a relative or enpl oyee of any
attorney or counsel or participant and that | am not
financially or otherw se interested in the action or the
out cone herein;

That the deposition, as transcribed, is a full,
true and correct transcript of the testinony, including
questions and answers and all objections, notions and
exam nations and said transcript was prepared pursuant to the
Washi ngton Adm ni strative Code 308-14-135 preparation

gui del i nes. wa&b CK}

Wade J. Johnson, Certified Court
Reporter 2574 for the State of Washi ngton
residing at Seattle, WAshi ngton.
My CCR certification expires on 09/18/20.
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Cct ober 4, 2019

To: Andrew Biggs
Assi stant Attorney Ceneral
O fice of the Attorney Ceneral
800 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2000
Seattl e, WAshi ngton 98104-73188
andr ew. bi ggs@t g. wa. gov

Case Name: Santhuff vs. State of Washington, et al.
Deposition of: CAPTAI N TRAVI S MATHESON

Dat e Taken: Septenber 27, 2019

Court Reporter: Wade J. Johnson, RPR

This letter is to advise you of the foll ow ng:

X Signature was reserved. The Affidavit and correction
sheet are being forwarded to you in electronic form
Pl ease have the deponent review the transcript, note
any corrections on the corrections page, and return
the signed affidavit and correction page to us within
30 days of this notice. According to Court Rule 30(e),
t he deposition affidavit should be signed within
thirty (30) days or signature is considered waived.

Signature was reserved. The transcript is ready for
review and signature. Your office did not order a
copy of the deposition transcript. Please contact
our office to make an appoi ntnment for review
Signature nmust be conpleted within 30 days of this
noti ce.

(Sent without signature to avoid del ay)
Wade J. Johnson, RPR

ccC: John P. Sheri dan
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CORRECTII

ON SHEET

PLEASE NOTE ALL CHANGES OR CORRECTI ONS ON THI S SHEET
BY PAGE AND LI NE NUMBER, AND THE REASON THEREFOR.

PAGE

LI NE

CORRECTI ON AND REASON
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176 Rules of Conduct Chapter 8

2. Ithereis a written agreement with another agency and that
agreement contains a specific clause outlining the'need for, and
parameters of, the commission or deputization of a department
employee, the Chief's signature upon the agreement indicates
approval. If no such written agreement exists, the requestin
employee shall submit an 10C throy h the chain of command to the
Chief that requests a proval and outlines all pertinent information,
including the name of the agen(c:jy, reason for and duration of the
commission or deputization. an any other special circumstances,

3. Employees deputized or commissioned by another law enforcement
agency shall not carry any badge, commission card, or insignia
representing any other agency without approval from the Chief of
the Washington State Patrol.

Applies to: Al WSP Employees
See Also: WSP Policy Off-Duty Employment Regulations

8.00.300 WHISTLEBLOWER - IMPROPER GOVERNMENTAL ACTION

l. POLICY
A, Reporting of Improper Governmental Actions

1. Employees shall be encouraged to report, to the extent not
prohibited by law, improper governmental actions.

2. Whistleblower complaints may be submitted anonymously.

3. For an improper governmental action to be investigated, it must be
provided to the State Auditor's Office, agency designee, or state
public government official within one year after the occurrence of
the action.

4. Improper governmental action is defined as any action by an
employee undertaken in the performance of the employee’s official
duties that:

a. s a gross waste of public funds or resources.

b. Is in violation of federal or state law or rule, if the violation is
not merely technical or of a minimum nature.

C. Is of substantial and specific danger to the public heath or
safety.

d. Isgross mismanagement.

e.  Prevents dissemination of scientific opinion or alters technical
findings.

reassignments, reinstatements, restorations, reemployments,
performance evaluations, reductions in pay, dismissais,

Washington State Patrof 2010 Regulation Manual
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Chapter 8 Rules of Conduct 177

suspensions, demotions, violations of state civil service law, alleged
labor agreement violations, reprimands, or any action taken under
chapters 41.06 or 28B.16 RCW, or other disciplinary action except
as provided in 42.40.030.

6. A Whistleblower is one who, in good faith, reports alleged improper
governmental action to the State Auditor’s Office, agency designee,
or other public official, or who provides information to the State
Auditor’s Office, agency designee, or other public official in
connection with an investigation, or who is believed to have
reported alleged improper governmental action to the State
Auditor’'s Office, agency designee, or other public official or
provided information in connection with an investigation, but who, in
fact, has or has not done so.

7. Employees may not use or attempt to use their official authority or
influence to interfere with another's right to disclose information of
improper governmental action. Use of official authority or influence
includes taking, directing others to take, recommending, processing
or approving any personnel action.

8. The Whistleblower and witnesses who provide information during
the mnvestigation will be provided confidentiality.

9. Employees will cooperate in the investigations, including the
prohibition to destroy any of the evidence during the course of the
investigation.

10. The Whistleblower, perceived Whistleblower, and/or witnesses who
provide information during the investigation or perceived to be
witnesses during the investigation will not be retaliated against.

11. Employees who feel they are being retaliated against can file a
complaint at the Human Rights Commission
http://'www.hum.wa.qgov.

B. Notification of Employees
1. The department shall provide each employee a copy of this policgl.
New employees must be notified upon entering employment, and all
employees must be re-informed annually.
. PROCEDURES
A. Refer to Washington State Auditor’s Office
1. The procedures for filing a Whistleblower complaint and all other

pertinent procedural information are located at the State Auditor's
Office Web site: http://iwww.sao.wa.gov/Whistleblower/index.htm.

2. Whistleblower complaints shall be reported on the State Auditor's
Office Whistleblower Form:

http://mww. sao.wa.aov/whistleblower/WBReportF orm. htm.

The following are methods for reporting/submitting a Whistleblower
complaint:

Washington State Patrol 2010 Regulation Manual
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Applies to:
See Also:

8.00.310

I. POLICY

a. Directly to the agency designee. The agency designee
includes the Deputy Chief, Commander of the Office of
Professional Standards, and the Commander of the Human
Resource Division.

b. Directly to the State Auditor's Office at:

Fax:  (360) 586-3519

E-mail: whistleblower@sao.wa.gov/whistieblower/WBReportForm.htm

Mail:  Washington State Auditor’s Office
Attn: State Employee Whistleblower Program
PO Box 40031
‘Olympia, WA 98504-0031

c. Directly to any state government "public official” to receive and
document Whistleblower complaints. A “public official” is
defined as:

(1) The director or equivalent in the agency where the
employee works.

(2) An appropriate number of individuals designated to
receive Whistleblower reports by the head of each
agency.

(3) The Attorney General's designee or designees.

Whistleblower complaints received by the Deputy Chief, Office of
Professional Standards Commander or the Human Resource
Division Commander shall be forwarded to the State Auditor’'s
Office within 15 days.

All employees are expected to complete the online Employee
Annual Review Checklist each year. The checklist contains a link to
the Washington State Auditor's Office Web site
http://www.sao.wa.gov/Whistleblower/index.htm.

All WSP Employees
RCW 28B.16, 41.06, 42.40; Employee Annual Review
Checklist

SERVICE DOGS

A. Service Dog Description and Purpose

1.

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and RCW recognize
"service dogs" as having the same access to public use facilities as
the person they service. By definition, a service dog is "an animal
that is trained for the purposes of assisting or accommodating a
disabled person's sensory, mental, or physical disability.” Public
use facilities include those to which the general public is invited
(e.g., motor buses, hotels, offices, hospitals, etc.).

Washington State Patrol 2010 Regulation Manual
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3. The officer will not be paid for call-out or call-back, but will be
compensated for the actual hours worked in detaining (or citing and
releasing) the suspect until the primary enforcement agency
responds. [f possible, the officer should complete the necessary
paperwork on his/her next regular duty shift.

4. Activiftg/ resulting from off-duty employment which is not related to

the off-duty employer contract may be recorded on the Time and
Activity Report.

Applies to: WSP Officers

See Also: RCW 43.43; WSP Policy Authorized Uniforms; Application for

Authorization of Off-Duty Employment
8.00.290 COMMISSION OR DEPUTIZATION OF AN EMPLOYEE BY
- ANOTHER AGENCY

l. POLICY
A. Chief's Approval Required for Commissioning/Deputization

1. Adepartment employee shall not be commissioned or deputized by
another agency without the WSP Chief's approval.

2. Ifthere is a written agreement with another agency and that
agreement contains a specific clause outlining the need for, and
parameters of, the commission or deputization of a department
employee, the Chief's signature upon the agreement indicates
approval. If no such written agreement exists, the requesting
employee shall submit an IOC through the chain of command to the
Chief that requests approval and outlines all pertinent information,
including the name of the agency, reason for and duration of the
commission or deputization, and any other special circumstances.

3. Employees deputized or commissioned by another law enforcement
agency shall not carry any badge, commission card, or insignia
representing any other agency without approval from the Chief of

the WSP.
Applies to: All WSP Employees
See Also: WSP Policy Off-Duty Employment Regulations
8.00.300 WHISTLEBLOWER — IMPROPER GOVERNMENTAL ACTION
I. POLICY

A. Reporting of Improper Governmental Actions

1. Employees shall be encouraged to report, to the extent not
prohibited by law, improper governmental actions.

2. Whistleblower complaints may be submitted anonymously.

3. For an improper governmental action to be investigated, it must be
provided to the State Auditor's Office, agency designee, or state

Washington State Patrol 2017 Regulation Manual
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10.

public government official within one year after the occurrence of
the action.

Improper governmental action is defined as any action by an
employee undertaken in the performance of the employee’s official
duties which:

a. lIs a gross waste of public funds or resources.

b. Isin violation of federal or state law or rule, if the violation is
not merely technical or of a minimum nature.

c. Is of substantial and specific danger to the public health or
safety.

d. Is gross mismanagement.

e. Prevents dissemination of scientific opinion or alters technical
findings.

It does not include personnel actions for which other remedies exist,
including but not limited to, employee grievances, complaints,
appointments, promotions, transfers, assignments, reassignments,
reinstatements, restorations, reemployments, performance
evaluations, reductions in pay, dismissals, suspensions, demotions,
violations of state civil service law, alleged labor agreement
violations, reprimands, claims of discriminatory treatment, or any
action taken under Chapters 41.06 RCW, or other disciplinary
action except as provided in RCW 42.40.030.

A Whistleblower is an employee who, in good faith, reports alleged
improper governmental action to the State Auditor’s Office, agency
designee, or other public official, or who provides information to the
State Auditor's Office, agency designee, or other public official in
connection with an investigation, or who is believed to have
reported alleged improper governmental action to the State
Auditor's Office, agency designee, or other public official or
provided information in connection with an investigation, but who, in
fact, has or has not done so.

Employees may not use or attempt to use their official authority or
influence to interfere with another's right to disclose information of
improper governmental action. Use of official authority or influence
includes taking, directing others to take, recommending, processing
or approving any personnel action.

The Whistleblower and witnesses who provide information during
the investigation will be provided confidentiality.

Employees will cooperate in the investigations, including the
prohibition to destroy any of the evidence during the course of the
investigation.

The Whistleblower, perceived Whistleblower, and/or withesses who
provide information during the investigation or perceived to be
witnesses during the investigation will not be retaliated against.

Washington State Patrol 2017 Regulation Manual
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11. Employees who feel they are being retaliated against can file a
complaint at the Human Rights Commission
(http://www.hum.wa.gov/).

B. Notification of Employees
1. The department shall provide each employee a copy of this policy.
New employees must be notified upon entering employment, and all
employees must be re-informed annually.
Il. PROCEDURES
A. Methods of Submitting a Whistleblower Complaint

1. Whistleblower complaints shall be reported on the State Auditor's
Office Whistleblower Form.

2. The following are methods for reporting/submitting a Whistleblower
complaint:

a. Directly to the agency designee. The agency designee
includes the Deputy Chief, Commander of the Office of
Professional Standards, and the Commander of the Human
Resource Division.

b. Directly to the State Auditor's Office at:

Fax: (360) 586-3519

E-mail: whistleblower@sao.wa.gov

Web:  httes:/mww.sao.wa.coviinvestinations/Paces/FileWhistieblower.aspx

Mail:  Washington State Auditor’s Office
Atin: State Employee Whistleblower Program
PO Box 40031
Olympia, WA 98504-0031

c. Directly to any state government “public official” to receive and
document Whistleblower complaints. A “public official” is
defined as:

(1) The director or equivalent in the agency where the
employee works.

(2) An appropriate number of individuals designated to
receive Whistleblower reports by the head of each
agency.

(3) The Attorney General's designee or designees.

3. Whistleblower complaints received by the Deputy Chief, Office of
Professional Standards Commander, or the Human Resource
Division Commander shall be forwarded to the State Auditor's
Office within 15 days.

Washington State Patrol 2017 Regulation Manual
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Applies to:

See Also:

8.00.310

I. POLICY
A

4.

Additional information can be found on the State Auditor's Web site
https://www.sao.wa.qov/investinations/Pages/FileWhistleblower.aspx.

All employees are expected to complete the online Employee
Annual Review Checklist each year. The checklist contains a link to
the Washington State Auditor’'s Office Web site

http://www.sao.wa.gov.

All WSP Employees
RCW 41.06, 42.40, 49.60.210; Employee Annual Review
Checklist

SERVICE DOGS

Service Dog Description and Purpose

1.

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and RCW recognize
"service dogs" as having the same access to public use facilities as
the person they service. By definition, a service dog is "an animal
that is trained for the purposes of assisting or accommodating a
disabled person's sensory, mental, or physical disability." Public
use facilities include those to which the general public is invited
(e.g., motor buses, hotels, offices, hospitals, etc.).

Some of the disabled may not have a visible disability (e.g.,
epilepsy, diabetes, etc.), but the use of a service dog can provide
them with a warning device for their health and safety.

Service Dog Requirements

1.

Service dog handlers must obey leash laws and vaccine laws. The
animal must be under the control of their handler at all times. There
is currently no certification or paper proof requirement for a service
dog. The animal may be any breed and has been trained to assist
the disabled person with his/her specific disability.

Encountering a Service Dog

1.

When dealing with a person who has a dog, employees may ask
the person if the animal is a service dog to assist the person with a
disability, but no other related inquiry into the details of the disability
is appropriate. As an invitation to the person to identify their animal
as a service dog, the Delta Society recommends that the person be
asked the question, "Is this your pet?" In cases of a disoriented
person, employees should assume the animal as a service dog until
further facts are known.

Also, the following apply:
a. Speak to the person, not the animal. Often, a well-meaning

individual will pet and make comments to the animal, initially
ignoring the person.

Washington State Patrol 2017 Regulation Manual
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 1                IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON

                         IN AND FOR KING COUNTY

 2

     __________________________________________________________

 3
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 4                                     )

                        Plaintiff,     )

 5                                     )  No. 19-2-04610-4 KNT

          vs.                          )

 6                                     )

     STATE OF WASHINGTON, and DAVID    )

 7   JAMES NOBACH, an individual,      )
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                                       )
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10
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11
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               andrew.biggs@atg.wa.gov
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     The Videographer:

15
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               2200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 425

17             Seattle, Washington 98121

18
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21

22
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 1          SEATTLE, WASHINGTON; FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2019

 2                             11:24 A.M.

 3                              --oOo--

 4                  THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We are now on the record at

 5   11:24 a.m., on Friday, September 27, 2019.  This is Volume 1,

 6   Media Unit 1 of the video recorded deposition of Travis

 7   Matheson.

 8                  All parties have agreed to waive the read on.

 9   So we will skip to counsel noting their appearances and

10   affiliations for the record, and then the court reporter may

11   swear in the witness.

12                  MR. SHERIDAN:  This is Jack Sheridan,

13   representing the plaintiff.  And in the room with me is

14   Justin Abbasi, who is an attorney in our office.

15                  MR. BIGGS:  Andrew Biggs, the State of

16   Washington and Lieutenant Nobach.

17

18   CAPTAIN TRAVIS MATHESON,   deponent herein, having been.

19                              first duly sworn on oath, was

20                              examined and testified as

21                              follows:

22

23                       E X A M I N A T I O N

24   BY MR. SHERIDAN:

25        Q.   Please state your full name for the record.
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 1        A.   Travis Matheson.

 2        Q.   And, Mr. Matheson, with whom are you employed?

 3        A.   With the Washington State Patrol.

 4        Q.   And how long have you been there?

 5        A.   About 27 years.

 6        Q.   Okay.  Are you retiring in the next year or two?

 7        A.   Maybe.

 8        Q.   All right.  Where do you currently live?

 9        A.   In Olympia.

10                  MR. SHERIDAN:  Is this an ER 43 witness?  Is

11   this a CR 43 witness?  I'm asking about managing agent.

12                  MR. BIGGS:  You didn't ask for that, no.

13                  MR. SHERIDAN:  No, no, I'm just thinking

14   subpoena.

15        Q.   I'll take your home address just in case.

16             What's your home address?

17        A.   4923 Cushman Road Northeast, Olympia, Washington

18   98506.

19        Q.   How long have you lived there?

20        A.   Five or six years.

21        Q.   What do you currently do for the Washington State

22   Patrol?

23        A.   I'm a captain in charge of our Property Management

24   division.

25        Q.   Before you had that job, what did you do?

0006

 1        A.   I was a captain in charge of our Human Resource

 2   division.

 3        Q.   How long did you have that job?

 4        A.   About 4 1/2 years.

 5        Q.   Who hired you into that job?

 6        A.   Chief Batiste.

 7        Q.   All right.  And were you a direct report to Chief

 8   Batiste at the time?

 9        A.   No.

10        Q.   To whom did you report during that time?

11        A.   There were two or three different assistant chiefs.

12   Among them, Assistant Chief Shawn Berry, and, most recently,

13   Assistant Chief Mark Lamoreaux, L-a-m-o-r-e-a-u-x.

14        Q.   What did Assistant Chief Lamoreaux do, as far as

15   you know?  What were his main duties?

16        A.   So, as assistant chief, he's responsible for

17   several other districts and divisions.  In his case, he was

18   responsible for the Technical Services Bureau, which included

19   Electronic Services division, technical -- or Information

20   Technology division, the Training Academy, the Communications

21   division, and the Human Resource department.

22        Q.   Did you leave Human Resources on your own volition?

23        A.   No.

24        Q.   How did that come about?

25        A.   The chief asked six captains to switch spots, about

0007

 1   three months ago, on July 1st.

 2        Q.   When you say the captain, do you mean Batiste?

 3        A.   No, the chief.

 4        Q.   Oh, the chief.

 5        A.   Chief Batiste, yes.  And I was one of the six

 6   captains that was switching spots.

 7        Q.   Who took your job?

 8        A.   Captain Monica Alexander.

 9        Q.   And is she related to Johnny Alexander?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   And by marriage?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   And how long -- if you know -- how long was she in

14   the position?

15        A.   In the Human Resource division?

16        Q.   Yes.

17        A.   Just a couple of months.  She recently retired.  So

18   all of captains reported July 1st.  Well, I take that back.

19   I think a few reported -- around July.

20        Q.   In 2016 and 2017, when you were HR director, who

21   were your customers?

22        A.   My customers were primarily the employees of the

23   State of Washington.

24        Q.   Okay.  And were you the highest ranking Human

25   Resources director in the State Patrol?

0008

 1        A.   Yes.

 2        Q.   And were you responsible for all policies and

 3   procedures related to Human Resources?

 4        A.   Yes.

 5        Q.   And all applicable statutes, like discrimination,

 6   retaliation, whistleblower, and all that?

 7        A.   Yes.

 8        Q.   And is it true that, in 2016 and 2017, you were a

 9   public official within the meaning of the whistleblower

10   statute?

11        A.   I'd have to look at the definition of public

12   official within that statute.

13        Q.   Sure.  Sure.  And under 42.40.020(7), the statute

14   says, "A public official means the attorney general's

15   designee or designees; the director, or equivalent thereof in

16   the agency where the employee works; an appropriate number of

17   individuals designated to receive whistleblower reports by

18   the head of each agency; or the executive ethics board."

19                  MR. BIGGS:  If that's a question, I object to

20   the form of the question.

21        Q.   Yeah.  And so, as you sit here today, do you recall

22   if you were?

23        A.   There is language in the State Patrol's regulation

24   manual that talks about the whistleblower public officials, I

25   believe.  And I think it's actually the Technical Services
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 1   Bureau assistant chief.

 2                  MR. SHERIDAN:  Okay.  Let me take a look at --

 3   so we have here a copy of the 2010 regulation manual that's

 4   applicable, and we also have the 2017 one.  We couldn't find

 5   any between.  So we're thinking that it's likely that this

 6   section hasn't changed.

 7                  So let's have the 2010 one marked first.

 8                  THE REPORTER:  Are we going to go with one?

 9                  MR. SHERIDAN:  One is fine, yeah.

10                  THE REPORTER:  Can we go off the record for a

11   second?

12                  MR. SHERIDAN:  Yeah, let's go off the record a

13   second.

14                  THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We are now going off the

15   record.  The time is 11:30 a.m.

16                            (Exhibit 1 marked for

17                             identification.)

18                            (A brief recess was taken.)

19                  THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We are back on record.  The

20   time is 11:31 a.m.

21        Q.   I am handing the witness what's been marked as

22   Exhibit 1.  And this purports to be Rules of Conduct from the

23   2010 version of the regulation manual.  I'd like to direct

24   you over to -- the first two pages, addressed, "Whistleblower

25   and Improper Governmental Action."  And, if you need to make
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 1   reference to them, go ahead.  I'd like to direct your

 2   attention to the third page, under Subsection C, about

 3   halfway down, less than halfway down.  And it says that

 4   the -- actually, I have to go back and start on the page

 5   before.  It says, "Referral to Washington State Auditor's

 6   Office."  And it says, "The following," at the bottom of page

 7   2, "are methods of reporting or submitting a whistleblower

 8   complaint," and then it has A, B, C, and it goes on.

 9             Under Subsection D, it says, "Directly to any state

10   government public official to receive and document

11   whistleblower complaints," and then it defines a public

12   official.

13             And then if you look at No. 3 it says,

14   "Whistleblower complaints received by the deputy chief,

15   Office of Professional Standards commander, or the Human

16   Resources division commander shall be forwarded to the State

17   Auditor's Office in 15 days."

18             Would you agree that the Human Resource division

19   commander in 2016 and 2017 was you?

20                  MR. BIGGS:  Objection.  Objection to form of

21   the question.

22        Q.   You can answer.

23        A.   Yes, I was the Human Resource division commander in

24   2016 and 2017.

25        Q.   Okay.  Great.  All right.
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 1             Did there come a time that you learned that Trooper

 2   Santhuff was complaining that he was being retaliated

 3   against?

 4        A.   Yes.

 5        Q.   And is it fair to say that was in 2016?

 6        A.   I don't remember exactly.

 7        Q.   Do you remember how the information came to you?

 8        A.   I don't specifically remember at this time, no.

 9        Q.   Okay.  And is it fair to say that -- you're aware

10   that he actually transferred, right?

11        A.   Can you clarify that?

12        Q.   Yeah.  I'll say it a different way.

13             It's true, is it not, that you met with Trooper

14   Santhuff at his exit interview?  It was you and I think

15   Lieutenant Matagi.

16        A.   Matagi.

17        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

18             And it's true, is it not, that, at that time, he

19   explained to you facts about the sexual misconduct incident

20   involving Lieutenant Nobach?

21        A.   Nobach.

22        Q.   Nobach, yes.

23                  MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.

24                  Go ahead.

25        Q.   You can answer.
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 1        A.   I vaguely remember that, yes.

 2        Q.   Okay.  And before he told you about that, had you

 3   been aware of it?

 4        A.   I don't remember.

 5        Q.   Okay.  Did you have any conversations with -- is it

 6   captain or chief -- Captain Alexander about Santhuff and his

 7   retaliation complaints in 2016?

 8        A.   I had conversations with at the time Captain Johnny

 9   Alexander, yes.

10        Q.   Okay.

11        A.   I don't recall the conversation I had with Trooper

12   Santhuff very well and whether those conversations with

13   Captain Alexander were before or after that.

14        Q.   Can you tell us, what did Captain Alexander say to

15   you?

16        A.   I don't recall those conversations specifically

17   either, yeah.

18        Q.   Okay.  Is it fair to say you understood, in talking

19   to Captain Alexander, that Trooper Santhuff had made various

20   claims about improper actions?

21        A.   Yes, it's fair to say that.

22        Q.   All right.  Did you ever do a whistleblower intake

23   for him?

24        A.   I'm not sure what that term "whistleblower intake"

25   means.
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 1        Q.   Okay.  So let's take a look at the exhibit again.

 2   So looking at the third page.

 3        A.   Yes.

 4        Q.   It says that, "Whistleblower complaints received by

 5   the deputy chief or the Human Resource division commander

 6   shall be forwarded to the State Auditor's Office within 15

 7   days."  Did you ever forward any information about complaints

 8   made by Trooper Santhuff -- whether or not they came to you

 9   from Captain Alexander -- did you ever forward anything to

10   the State Auditor's Office?

11        A.   Not that I recall, no.

12        Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that if -- do you have an

13   understanding of the definition of improper governmental

14   action?

15                  MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.

16        A.   That's a particularly relevant question these days.

17   It's pretty broad, too.

18        Q.   It is.  So take a look at page 1 of the exhibit,

19   under subsection policy, and then Item No. A-4.  It says,

20   "Improper governmental action is defined as any action by an

21   employee undertaken in the performance of the employee's

22   official duties that is a gross waste of public funds, a

23   violation of federal or state law or rules, is of substantial

24   and specific danger to the public health, gross

25   mismanagement," and then there's a section about scientific
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 1   opinions that doesn't apply.

 2             But during the time that you were in charge of

 3   Human Resources, to your knowledge, did any such

 4   whistleblower complaint -- any complaints of improper

 5   governmental action reach your desk and get forwarded?

 6        A.   Sure.

 7             Not that I recall, to the level that's described

 8   here.

 9        Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that a claim of sexual

10   harassment might be considered a violation of federal and

11   state law under 4(b)?

12                  MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.

13        A.   Could you ask that again, please.  I was trying to

14   read at the same time.

15        Q.   Sure.  Would you agree that a claim of sexual

16   harassment at work by a state employee would be considered to

17   fall under 4(b), that it would be in violation of federal or

18   state law?

19                  MR. BIGGS:  Same objection.

20        A.   Yeah, so a claim of sexual harassment, not

21   necessarily.

22        Q.   Okay.  And that would be -- have you had to address

23   that issue in the whistleblower context during the time

24   you've been HR manager?

25        A.   What do you mean?
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 1        Q.   Have you had to make any decisions about whether or

 2   not a particular claim that's come to you sort of rose to the

 3   level of a whistleblower claim?

 4        A.   Not that I recall, no.

 5        Q.   Fair enough.  All right.

 6             So I know this is pushing the time of barrier quite

 7   a bit, but could you tell us everything that you remember

 8   that Captain Alexander told you about Santhuff's complaints.

 9        A.   I don't remember much.  They were consulting-type

10   of meetings.

11        Q.   Okay.  So he was asking you for advice?

12        A.   Yeah, I think that's fair.

13        Q.   All right.  Did he bring to your attention that at

14   any time that Trooper Santhuff had alleged that his immediate

15   boss, Lieutenant Nobach, was retaliating against him for

16   having spoken out about sexual harassment?

17        A.   Did Captain Alexander tell me that?

18        Q.   Yeah.

19        A.   I believe so, yes.

20        Q.   Okay.  All right.  And is it fair to say that that

21   happened in 2016?

22        A.   I don't recall.

23        Q.   You don't recall what month it was?

24        A.   Correct.

25        Q.   And was that more than one meeting or one meeting?
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 1        A.   There was more than one.

 2        Q.   Okay.  Do you document any of those type of

 3   meetings?

 4        A.   Sometimes, yes.

 5        Q.   If you did document the meeting, where would you

 6   have documented it?

 7        A.   I would have documented that in a computer program

 8   that we refer to as Remedy.

 9        Q.   Okay.

10        A.   And we have a harassment file within there.

11        Q.   Okay.  And so who had the authority to start a

12   particular file?

13        A.   Myself, Lieutenant Matagi, Dr. Lastimato, and Deb

14   Tindall.

15        Q.   And are those all Human Resource personnel?

16        A.   Correct.

17        Q.   Are any of them civilians, as opposed to State

18   Patrol?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   Which ones?

21        A.   Myself and Lieutenant Matagi are commissioned, and

22   Dr. Lastimato and Deb Tindall are civilians.

23        Q.   In this case, do you recall whether or not you

24   started a harassment file?

25        A.   There was a file created, yes.
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 1        Q.   Pertaining to Santhuff?

 2        A.   Correct.

 3        Q.   Did you create it?

 4        A.   I don't remember.

 5        Q.   So having created the file, under your policies and

 6   procedures, is there any obligation to investigate?

 7        A.   So the Human Resource division doesn't do

 8   investigations into policy violations.  Our role is to ensure

 9   the employees are safe.  The Office of Professional Standards

10   is the entity within the Washington State Patrol that

11   conducts investigations, looking for or determining if

12   there's a policy violation.

13        Q.   Is there any requirement that HR have any oversight

14   of their investigations?

15        A.   There's no requirement that there's oversight by

16   HR.  There is certainly coordination and communication.

17        Q.   Okay.  All right.  I wanted to show you -- we don't

18   need to mark them as exhibits because they're already

19   exhibits, but -- so we've deposed Captain Alexander, and this

20   is Exhibits 4 and 3 from that deposition.  These things are

21   referred to as 095s.  Does that have meaning for you, an 095?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Okay.  Let me give you a chance to read both of

24   them.  It's fairly quick, and then let me know when you've

25   had a chance to look.
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 1        A.   Okay.

 2        Q.   All right.  Have you ever seen these documents

 3   before?

 4        A.   Yes.

 5        Q.   Okay.  Could you tell us when.

 6        A.   Well, shortly after they were issued, so to speak,

 7   I think they were provided to the Human Resource division to

 8   include in the file that I referred to in Remedy.

 9        Q.   Okay.  So, basically, is it fair to say that the

10   harassment file you've been discussing was probably created

11   way back in March of 2016?

12        A.   Yes, it's fair to say that.

13        Q.   Do these files have names on them?

14        A.   They have names within them.  They have a tracking

15   number.  Yes.

16        Q.   So what I'm trying to understand --

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   Was it created identifying Trooper Santhuff as the

19   person who is allegedly the victim?

20        A.   I don't recall.  There are different roles for

21   individuals within each file.  It's a computer dropdown.  And

22   I don't recall the role that was given to Trooper Santhuff in

23   this particular incident.

24        Q.   Do you also get involved in labor-related issues as

25   the Human Resource director?

0019

 1        A.   Yes.

 2        Q.   So one of the questions I have is:  Did you have an

 3   understanding that it was Captain Alexander who made the

 4   decision to provide these 095s to Ms. Biscay and to

 5   Lieutenant Nobach?

 6        A.   I don't remember that specifically.

 7        Q.   Is it true, based on your understanding of the

 8   contracts with the various unions, that, once Alexander gave

 9   Nobach this 095, Nobach could not be further disciplined?

10        A.   So this is not considered a form of discipline in

11   the contract.  So there's some granularity in that question.

12        Q.   Okay.  So it's sort of like, in the law, we talk

13   about double jeopardy?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Can an 095 have a double jeopardy effect on more

16   serious punishment in your experience?

17                  MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   Okay.  Did Alexander talk to you about his intent

20   to give this so that no additional discipline could be given?

21                  MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.

22        A.   I don't recall that.

23        Q.   All right.  Can you tell us whether or not you were

24   consulted before the 095s were given?

25        A.   I don't remember.
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 1        Q.   Do you recall whether or not the way that -- do you

 2   recall whether or not Alexander presented to you a picture of

 3   Ms. Biscay basically rubbing her breasts into the head of

 4   Lieutenant Nobach?

 5        A.   Is the question:  Do I recall Captain Alexander

 6   relaying that?

 7        Q.   Yes.

 8        A.   I believe so.

 9        Q.   And do you recall whether or not he had suggested

10   whether there was an appropriate level of discipline that

11   ought to be applied?

12        A.   I do not recall that.

13        Q.   Does your organization do any investigations as HR?

14        A.   So, again, the term "investigation" is something

15   that's typically reserved for the Office of Professional

16   Standards in the State Patrol.  Again, our role is to ensure

17   safety.  So we will make phone calls to employees and to

18   people involved in that effort.  So I don't know if you call

19   that an investigation or not.

20        Q.   Fair enough.

21             Have you ever been a whistleblower?

22        A.   I don't think so, no.

23        Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.  Okay.

24             Have you yourself personally witnessed any abuse of

25   power within your organization that you reported?
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 1        A.   No.

 2        Q.   Have you ever been disciplined for anything?

 3        A.   Yes.

 4        Q.   What type of things?

 5        A.   Boy, I believe I had a courtesy complaint when I

 6   was a trooper.

 7        Q.   Meaning that a citizen said that you weren't

 8   courteous?

 9        A.   Correct.

10        Q.   Okay.

11        A.   And I think I had a speeding complaint as a

12   trooper, meaning that someone called in that they saw a fast

13   patrol car and it was me.

14        Q.   Okay.

15        A.   I think that's it.

16        Q.   Okay.  And since you've gotten up to captain,

17   anything as a captain or lieutenant or any of that?

18        A.   No.  I've made mistakes, but I have not been

19   formally disciplined.

20        Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.

21             Let me just show you the 2017 one, since that will

22   help close the circle.

23        A.   Yeah.

24                            (Exhibit 2 marked for

25                             identification.)
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 1        Q.   So the 2017 one, it's again on page 3.

 2        A.   Yes.

 3        Q.   And it says at the bottom, Item 3, is,

 4   "Whistleblower complaints received by the deputy chief,

 5   Office of Professional Standards, or Human Resource division

 6   commander shall be forwarded to the State Auditor's Office."

 7             So we concluded from that that probably between

 8   2010 and 2017 this regulation had not been changed.

 9             Do you have any knowledge that this item that I've

10   just read to you may have fallen out of grace in 2016 or some

11   other time?

12        A.   I do not.

13                  MR. SHERIDAN:  Okay.  Thanks.  All right.

14   Let's take a quick break.

15                  MR. BIGGS:  Okay.

16                  THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We are going off record.

17                  The time now is 11:48 a.m.

18                            (A brief recess was taken.)

19                  THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We are back on record.

20                  The time is 11:50 a.m.

21        Q.   As HR manager, have you ever had a situation where

22   a manager told an employee that they should not go outside of

23   their organization to make a complaint?

24                  MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.

25        A.   Can you be more specific?
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 1        Q.   Sure.

 2        A.   Like give me an example?

 3        Q.   Yeah.

 4             So there's been some testimony that Trooper

 5   Santhuff was basically told to sort of not repeat these

 6   allegations outside of our little -- outside of Aviation.

 7        A.   Okay.

 8        Q.   Is there any policy or procedure that would

 9   prohibit him from doing that?

10                  MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.

11        A.   No.

12        Q.   In fact, isn't there a duty among -- all the way up

13   through the supervisory chain -- that, if they hear about

14   sexual harassment, they need to report it?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   How about, are there any policies or procedures

17   that would prohibit an employee from going to the media if

18   they wanted to, that you know of?

19        A.   We do have policies regarding employee interaction

20   with the media, yes.

21        Q.   Where would they be found?

22        A.   They're in the regulation manual at the State

23   Patrol.

24        Q.   All right.

25        A.   Not the sections we have here.
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 1        Q.   Are you familiar with them, that you could

 2   summarize them?

 3        A.   I'm not comfortable doing that.  Sorry.

 4        Q.   Sure.

 5        A.   No, I'm not familiar enough, no.

 6                  MR. SHERIDAN:  That's an honest answer.  Thank

 7   you.  All right.  I have no further questions.  Thanks for

 8   your time.

 9                  MR. BIGGS:  No questions.  Thank you.

10                  Signature is reserved.

11                  THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  One second.  I will take us

12   off record.  All right.  That concludes the video deposition

13   of Travis Matheson.

14                  We are now going off record at 11:52 a.m.

15                       (Signature reserved.)

16                (Deposition concluded at 11:52 a.m.)
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 1                         A F F I D A V I T

 2

     STATE OF WASHINGTON )

 3                       )  ss.

     COUNTY OF KING      )

 4

 5

 6

 7             I, CAPTAIN TRAVIS MATHESON, hereby declare under

 8   penalty of perjury that I have read the foregoing deposition

 9   and that the testimony contained herein is a true and correct

10   transcript of my testimony, noting the corrections attached.
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                        CAPTAIN TRAVIS MATHESON
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 1                       C E R T I F I C A T E

 2   STATE OF WASHINGTON )

                         )  ss

 3   COUNTY OF KING      )

 4

 5             I, the undersigned Washington Certified Court

     Reporter, pursuant to RCW 5.28.010, authorized to administer

 6   oaths and affirmations in and for the State of Washington, do

     hereby certify:  That the foregoing deposition of the witness

 7   named herein was taken stenographically before me and reduced

     to a typed format under my direction;

 8

               That, according to CR 30(e), the witness was given

 9   the opportunity to examine, read and sign the deposition

     after same was transcribed, unless indicated in the record

10   that the review was waived;

11             That I am not a relative or employee of any

     attorney or counsel or participant and that I am not

12   financially or otherwise interested in the action or the

     outcome herein;

13

               That the deposition, as transcribed, is a full,

14   true and correct transcript of the testimony, including

     questions and answers and all objections, motions and

15   examinations and said transcript was prepared pursuant to the

     Washington Administrative Code 308-14-135 preparation

16   guidelines.

17

18                       Wade J. Johnson, Certified Court

                         Reporter 2574 for the State of Washington

19                       residing at Seattle, Washington.

                         My CCR certification expires on 09/18/20.
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 4

     To:  Andrew Biggs

 5        Assistant Attorney General

          Office of the Attorney General

 6        800 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2000

          Seattle, Washington 98104-73188

 7        andrew.biggs@atg.wa.gov

 8   Case Name:  Santhuff vs. State of Washington, et al.

     Deposition of:  CAPTAIN TRAVIS MATHESON

 9   Date Taken:  September 27, 2019

     Court Reporter:  Wade J. Johnson, RPR
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             sheet are being forwarded to you in electronic form.
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             30 days of this notice.  According to Court Rule 30(e),
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             thirty (30) days or signature is considered waived.
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     ______  Signature was reserved.  The transcript is ready for

17           review and signature.  Your office did not order a

             copy of the deposition transcript.  Please contact

18           our office to make an appointment for review.

             Signature must be completed within 30 days of this

19           notice.

20

                           (Sent without signature to avoid delay)

21                          Wade J. Johnson, RPR
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		322						LN		12		5		false		           5          Q.   Okay.  Did you have any conversations with -- is it				false

		323						LN		12		6		false		           6     captain or chief -- Captain Alexander about Santhuff and his				false

		324						LN		12		7		false		           7     retaliation complaints in 2016?				false

		325						LN		12		8		false		           8          A.   I had conversations with at the time Captain Johnny				false

		326						LN		12		9		false		           9     Alexander, yes.				false

		327						LN		12		10		false		          10          Q.   Okay.				false

		328						LN		12		11		false		          11          A.   I don't recall the conversation I had with Trooper				false

		329						LN		12		12		false		          12     Santhuff very well and whether those conversations with				false

		330						LN		12		13		false		          13     Captain Alexander were before or after that.				false

		331						LN		12		14		false		          14          Q.   Can you tell us, what did Captain Alexander say to				false

		332						LN		12		15		false		          15     you?				false

		333						LN		12		16		false		          16          A.   I don't recall those conversations specifically				false

		334						LN		12		17		false		          17     either, yeah.				false

		335						LN		12		18		false		          18          Q.   Okay.  Is it fair to say you understood, in talking				false

		336						LN		12		19		false		          19     to Captain Alexander, that Trooper Santhuff had made various				false

		337						LN		12		20		false		          20     claims about improper actions?				false

		338						LN		12		21		false		          21          A.   Yes, it's fair to say that.				false

		339						LN		12		22		false		          22          Q.   All right.  Did you ever do a whistleblower intake				false

		340						LN		12		23		false		          23     for him?				false

		341						LN		12		24		false		          24          A.   I'm not sure what that term "whistleblower intake"				false

		342						LN		12		25		false		          25     means.				false

		343						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		344						LN		13		1		false		           1          Q.   Okay.  So let's take a look at the exhibit again.				false

		345						LN		13		2		false		           2     So looking at the third page.				false

		346						LN		13		3		false		           3          A.   Yes.				false

		347						LN		13		4		false		           4          Q.   It says that, "Whistleblower complaints received by				false

		348						LN		13		5		false		           5     the deputy chief or the Human Resource division commander				false

		349						LN		13		6		false		           6     shall be forwarded to the State Auditor's Office within 15				false

		350						LN		13		7		false		           7     days."  Did you ever forward any information about complaints				false

		351						LN		13		8		false		           8     made by Trooper Santhuff -- whether or not they came to you				false

		352						LN		13		9		false		           9     from Captain Alexander -- did you ever forward anything to				false

		353						LN		13		10		false		          10     the State Auditor's Office?				false

		354						LN		13		11		false		          11          A.   Not that I recall, no.				false

		355						LN		13		12		false		          12          Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that if -- do you have an				false

		356						LN		13		13		false		          13     understanding of the definition of improper governmental				false

		357						LN		13		14		false		          14     action?				false

		358						LN		13		15		false		          15                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.				false

		359						LN		13		16		false		          16          A.   That's a particularly relevant question these days.				false

		360						LN		13		17		false		          17     It's pretty broad, too.				false

		361						LN		13		18		false		          18          Q.   It is.  So take a look at page 1 of the exhibit,				false

		362						LN		13		19		false		          19     under subsection policy, and then Item No. A-4.  It says,				false

		363						LN		13		20		false		          20     "Improper governmental action is defined as any action by an				false

		364						LN		13		21		false		          21     employee undertaken in the performance of the employee's				false

		365						LN		13		22		false		          22     official duties that is a gross waste of public funds, a				false

		366						LN		13		23		false		          23     violation of federal or state law or rules, is of substantial				false

		367						LN		13		24		false		          24     and specific danger to the public health, gross				false

		368						LN		13		25		false		          25     mismanagement," and then there's a section about scientific				false

		369						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		370						LN		14		1		false		           1     opinions that doesn't apply.				false

		371						LN		14		2		false		           2               But during the time that you were in charge of				false

		372						LN		14		3		false		           3     Human Resources, to your knowledge, did any such				false

		373						LN		14		4		false		           4     whistleblower complaint -- any complaints of improper				false

		374						LN		14		5		false		           5     governmental action reach your desk and get forwarded?				false

		375						LN		14		6		false		           6          A.   Sure.				false

		376						LN		14		7		false		           7               Not that I recall, to the level that's described				false

		377						LN		14		8		false		           8     here.				false

		378						LN		14		9		false		           9          Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that a claim of sexual				false

		379						LN		14		10		false		          10     harassment might be considered a violation of federal and				false

		380						LN		14		11		false		          11     state law under 4(b)?				false

		381						LN		14		12		false		          12                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.				false

		382						LN		14		13		false		          13          A.   Could you ask that again, please.  I was trying to				false

		383						LN		14		14		false		          14     read at the same time.				false

		384						LN		14		15		false		          15          Q.   Sure.  Would you agree that a claim of sexual				false

		385						LN		14		16		false		          16     harassment at work by a state employee would be considered to				false

		386						LN		14		17		false		          17     fall under 4(b), that it would be in violation of federal or				false

		387						LN		14		18		false		          18     state law?				false

		388						LN		14		19		false		          19                    MR. BIGGS:  Same objection.				false

		389						LN		14		20		false		          20          A.   Yeah, so a claim of sexual harassment, not				false

		390						LN		14		21		false		          21     necessarily.				false

		391						LN		14		22		false		          22          Q.   Okay.  And that would be -- have you had to address				false

		392						LN		14		23		false		          23     that issue in the whistleblower context during the time				false

		393						LN		14		24		false		          24     you've been HR manager?				false

		394						LN		14		25		false		          25          A.   What do you mean?				false

		395						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		396						LN		15		1		false		           1          Q.   Have you had to make any decisions about whether or				false

		397						LN		15		2		false		           2     not a particular claim that's come to you sort of rose to the				false

		398						LN		15		3		false		           3     level of a whistleblower claim?				false

		399						LN		15		4		false		           4          A.   Not that I recall, no.				false

		400						LN		15		5		false		           5          Q.   Fair enough.  All right.				false

		401						LN		15		6		false		           6               So I know this is pushing the time of barrier quite				false

		402						LN		15		7		false		           7     a bit, but could you tell us everything that you remember				false

		403						LN		15		8		false		           8     that Captain Alexander told you about Santhuff's complaints.				false

		404						LN		15		9		false		           9          A.   I don't remember much.  They were consulting-type				false

		405						LN		15		10		false		          10     of meetings.				false

		406						LN		15		11		false		          11          Q.   Okay.  So he was asking you for advice?				false

		407						LN		15		12		false		          12          A.   Yeah, I think that's fair.				false

		408						LN		15		13		false		          13          Q.   All right.  Did he bring to your attention that at				false

		409						LN		15		14		false		          14     any time that Trooper Santhuff had alleged that his immediate				false

		410						LN		15		15		false		          15     boss, Lieutenant Nobach, was retaliating against him for				false

		411						LN		15		16		false		          16     having spoken out about sexual harassment?				false

		412						LN		15		17		false		          17          A.   Did Captain Alexander tell me that?				false

		413						LN		15		18		false		          18          Q.   Yeah.				false

		414						LN		15		19		false		          19          A.   I believe so, yes.				false

		415						LN		15		20		false		          20          Q.   Okay.  All right.  And is it fair to say that that				false

		416						LN		15		21		false		          21     happened in 2016?				false

		417						LN		15		22		false		          22          A.   I don't recall.				false

		418						LN		15		23		false		          23          Q.   You don't recall what month it was?				false

		419						LN		15		24		false		          24          A.   Correct.				false

		420						LN		15		25		false		          25          Q.   And was that more than one meeting or one meeting?				false

		421						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		422						LN		16		1		false		           1          A.   There was more than one.				false

		423						LN		16		2		false		           2          Q.   Okay.  Do you document any of those type of				false

		424						LN		16		3		false		           3     meetings?				false

		425						LN		16		4		false		           4          A.   Sometimes, yes.				false

		426						LN		16		5		false		           5          Q.   If you did document the meeting, where would you				false

		427						LN		16		6		false		           6     have documented it?				false

		428						LN		16		7		false		           7          A.   I would have documented that in a computer program				false

		429						LN		16		8		false		           8     that we refer to as Remedy.				false

		430						LN		16		9		false		           9          Q.   Okay.				false

		431						LN		16		10		false		          10          A.   And we have a harassment file within there.				false

		432						LN		16		11		false		          11          Q.   Okay.  And so who had the authority to start a				false

		433						LN		16		12		false		          12     particular file?				false

		434						LN		16		13		false		          13          A.   Myself, Lieutenant Matagi, Dr. Lastimato, and Deb				false

		435						LN		16		14		false		          14     Tindall.				false

		436						LN		16		15		false		          15          Q.   And are those all Human Resource personnel?				false

		437						LN		16		16		false		          16          A.   Correct.				false

		438						LN		16		17		false		          17          Q.   Are any of them civilians, as opposed to State				false

		439						LN		16		18		false		          18     Patrol?				false

		440						LN		16		19		false		          19          A.   Yes.				false

		441						LN		16		20		false		          20          Q.   Which ones?				false

		442						LN		16		21		false		          21          A.   Myself and Lieutenant Matagi are commissioned, and				false

		443						LN		16		22		false		          22     Dr. Lastimato and Deb Tindall are civilians.				false

		444						LN		16		23		false		          23          Q.   In this case, do you recall whether or not you				false

		445						LN		16		24		false		          24     started a harassment file?				false

		446						LN		16		25		false		          25          A.   There was a file created, yes.				false

		447						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		448						LN		17		1		false		           1          Q.   Pertaining to Santhuff?				false

		449						LN		17		2		false		           2          A.   Correct.				false

		450						LN		17		3		false		           3          Q.   Did you create it?				false

		451						LN		17		4		false		           4          A.   I don't remember.				false

		452						LN		17		5		false		           5          Q.   So having created the file, under your policies and				false

		453						LN		17		6		false		           6     procedures, is there any obligation to investigate?				false

		454						LN		17		7		false		           7          A.   So the Human Resource division doesn't do				false

		455						LN		17		8		false		           8     investigations into policy violations.  Our role is to ensure				false

		456						LN		17		9		false		           9     the employees are safe.  The Office of Professional Standards				false

		457						LN		17		10		false		          10     is the entity within the Washington State Patrol that				false

		458						LN		17		11		false		          11     conducts investigations, looking for or determining if				false

		459						LN		17		12		false		          12     there's a policy violation.				false

		460						LN		17		13		false		          13          Q.   Is there any requirement that HR have any oversight				false

		461						LN		17		14		false		          14     of their investigations?				false

		462						LN		17		15		false		          15          A.   There's no requirement that there's oversight by				false

		463						LN		17		16		false		          16     HR.  There is certainly coordination and communication.				false

		464						LN		17		17		false		          17          Q.   Okay.  All right.  I wanted to show you -- we don't				false

		465						LN		17		18		false		          18     need to mark them as exhibits because they're already				false

		466						LN		17		19		false		          19     exhibits, but -- so we've deposed Captain Alexander, and this				false

		467						LN		17		20		false		          20     is Exhibits 4 and 3 from that deposition.  These things are				false

		468						LN		17		21		false		          21     referred to as 095s.  Does that have meaning for you, an 095?				false

		469						LN		17		22		false		          22          A.   Yes.				false

		470						LN		17		23		false		          23          Q.   Okay.  Let me give you a chance to read both of				false

		471						LN		17		24		false		          24     them.  It's fairly quick, and then let me know when you've				false

		472						LN		17		25		false		          25     had a chance to look.				false

		473						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		474						LN		18		1		false		           1          A.   Okay.				false

		475						LN		18		2		false		           2          Q.   All right.  Have you ever seen these documents				false

		476						LN		18		3		false		           3     before?				false

		477						LN		18		4		false		           4          A.   Yes.				false

		478						LN		18		5		false		           5          Q.   Okay.  Could you tell us when.				false

		479						LN		18		6		false		           6          A.   Well, shortly after they were issued, so to speak,				false

		480						LN		18		7		false		           7     I think they were provided to the Human Resource division to				false

		481						LN		18		8		false		           8     include in the file that I referred to in Remedy.				false

		482						LN		18		9		false		           9          Q.   Okay.  So, basically, is it fair to say that the				false

		483						LN		18		10		false		          10     harassment file you've been discussing was probably created				false

		484						LN		18		11		false		          11     way back in March of 2016?				false

		485						LN		18		12		false		          12          A.   Yes, it's fair to say that.				false

		486						LN		18		13		false		          13          Q.   Do these files have names on them?				false

		487						LN		18		14		false		          14          A.   They have names within them.  They have a tracking				false

		488						LN		18		15		false		          15     number.  Yes.				false

		489						LN		18		16		false		          16          Q.   So what I'm trying to understand --				false

		490						LN		18		17		false		          17          A.   Yes.				false

		491						LN		18		18		false		          18          Q.   Was it created identifying Trooper Santhuff as the				false

		492						LN		18		19		false		          19     person who is allegedly the victim?				false

		493						LN		18		20		false		          20          A.   I don't recall.  There are different roles for				false

		494						LN		18		21		false		          21     individuals within each file.  It's a computer dropdown.  And				false

		495						LN		18		22		false		          22     I don't recall the role that was given to Trooper Santhuff in				false

		496						LN		18		23		false		          23     this particular incident.				false

		497						LN		18		24		false		          24          Q.   Do you also get involved in labor-related issues as				false

		498						LN		18		25		false		          25     the Human Resource director?				false

		499						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		500						LN		19		1		false		           1          A.   Yes.				false

		501						LN		19		2		false		           2          Q.   So one of the questions I have is:  Did you have an				false

		502						LN		19		3		false		           3     understanding that it was Captain Alexander who made the				false

		503						LN		19		4		false		           4     decision to provide these 095s to Ms. Biscay and to				false

		504						LN		19		5		false		           5     Lieutenant Nobach?				false

		505						LN		19		6		false		           6          A.   I don't remember that specifically.				false

		506						LN		19		7		false		           7          Q.   Is it true, based on your understanding of the				false

		507						LN		19		8		false		           8     contracts with the various unions, that, once Alexander gave				false

		508						LN		19		9		false		           9     Nobach this 095, Nobach could not be further disciplined?				false

		509						LN		19		10		false		          10          A.   So this is not considered a form of discipline in				false

		510						LN		19		11		false		          11     the contract.  So there's some granularity in that question.				false

		511						LN		19		12		false		          12          Q.   Okay.  So it's sort of like, in the law, we talk				false

		512						LN		19		13		false		          13     about double jeopardy?				false

		513						LN		19		14		false		          14          A.   Yes.				false

		514						LN		19		15		false		          15          Q.   Can an 095 have a double jeopardy effect on more				false

		515						LN		19		16		false		          16     serious punishment in your experience?				false

		516						LN		19		17		false		          17                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.				false

		517						LN		19		18		false		          18          A.   Yes.				false

		518						LN		19		19		false		          19          Q.   Okay.  Did Alexander talk to you about his intent				false

		519						LN		19		20		false		          20     to give this so that no additional discipline could be given?				false

		520						LN		19		21		false		          21                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.				false

		521						LN		19		22		false		          22          A.   I don't recall that.				false

		522						LN		19		23		false		          23          Q.   All right.  Can you tell us whether or not you were				false

		523						LN		19		24		false		          24     consulted before the 095s were given?				false

		524						LN		19		25		false		          25          A.   I don't remember.				false

		525						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		526						LN		20		1		false		           1          Q.   Do you recall whether or not the way that -- do you				false

		527						LN		20		2		false		           2     recall whether or not Alexander presented to you a picture of				false

		528						LN		20		3		false		           3     Ms. Biscay basically rubbing her breasts into the head of				false

		529						LN		20		4		false		           4     Lieutenant Nobach?				false

		530						LN		20		5		false		           5          A.   Is the question:  Do I recall Captain Alexander				false

		531						LN		20		6		false		           6     relaying that?				false

		532						LN		20		7		false		           7          Q.   Yes.				false

		533						LN		20		8		false		           8          A.   I believe so.				false

		534						LN		20		9		false		           9          Q.   And do you recall whether or not he had suggested				false

		535						LN		20		10		false		          10     whether there was an appropriate level of discipline that				false

		536						LN		20		11		false		          11     ought to be applied?				false

		537						LN		20		12		false		          12          A.   I do not recall that.				false

		538						LN		20		13		false		          13          Q.   Does your organization do any investigations as HR?				false

		539						LN		20		14		false		          14          A.   So, again, the term "investigation" is something				false

		540						LN		20		15		false		          15     that's typically reserved for the Office of Professional				false

		541						LN		20		16		false		          16     Standards in the State Patrol.  Again, our role is to ensure				false

		542						LN		20		17		false		          17     safety.  So we will make phone calls to employees and to				false

		543						LN		20		18		false		          18     people involved in that effort.  So I don't know if you call				false

		544						LN		20		19		false		          19     that an investigation or not.				false

		545						LN		20		20		false		          20          Q.   Fair enough.				false

		546						LN		20		21		false		          21               Have you ever been a whistleblower?				false

		547						LN		20		22		false		          22          A.   I don't think so, no.				false

		548						LN		20		23		false		          23          Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.  Okay.				false

		549						LN		20		24		false		          24               Have you yourself personally witnessed any abuse of				false

		550						LN		20		25		false		          25     power within your organization that you reported?				false

		551						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		552						LN		21		1		false		           1          A.   No.				false

		553						LN		21		2		false		           2          Q.   Have you ever been disciplined for anything?				false

		554						LN		21		3		false		           3          A.   Yes.				false

		555						LN		21		4		false		           4          Q.   What type of things?				false

		556						LN		21		5		false		           5          A.   Boy, I believe I had a courtesy complaint when I				false

		557						LN		21		6		false		           6     was a trooper.				false

		558						LN		21		7		false		           7          Q.   Meaning that a citizen said that you weren't				false

		559						LN		21		8		false		           8     courteous?				false

		560						LN		21		9		false		           9          A.   Correct.				false

		561						LN		21		10		false		          10          Q.   Okay.				false

		562						LN		21		11		false		          11          A.   And I think I had a speeding complaint as a				false

		563						LN		21		12		false		          12     trooper, meaning that someone called in that they saw a fast				false

		564						LN		21		13		false		          13     patrol car and it was me.				false

		565						LN		21		14		false		          14          Q.   Okay.				false

		566						LN		21		15		false		          15          A.   I think that's it.				false

		567						LN		21		16		false		          16          Q.   Okay.  And since you've gotten up to captain,				false

		568						LN		21		17		false		          17     anything as a captain or lieutenant or any of that?				false

		569						LN		21		18		false		          18          A.   No.  I've made mistakes, but I have not been				false

		570						LN		21		19		false		          19     formally disciplined.				false
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           1                  IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON

                                     IN AND FOR KING COUNTY

           2

                 __________________________________________________________

           3

                 RYAN SANTHUFF, an individual,     )

           4                                       )

                                    Plaintiff,     )

           5                                       )  No. 19-2-04610-4 KNT

                      vs.                          )

           6                                       )

                 STATE OF WASHINGTON, and DAVID    )

           7     JAMES NOBACH, an individual,      )

                                                   )

           8                        Defendants.    )

                                                   )

           9     __________________________________________________________



          10

                                Deposition Upon Oral Examination

          11

                                               of

          12

                                    CAPTAIN TRAVIS MATHESON

          13

                 __________________________________________________________

          14



          15                Taken at 705 Second Avenue, Suite 1200

                                      Seattle, Washington

          16



          17



          18



          19



          20



          21



          22



          23     DATE:  September 27, 2019



          24     REPORTED BY:  Wade J. Johnson, RPR

                               CCR No.:  2574

          25
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           1                         A P P E A R A N C E S



           2



           3     For the Plaintiff:



           4               John P. Sheridan

                           Justin Abassi

           5               The Sheridan Law Firm, P.S.

                           705 Second Avenue, Suite 1200

           6               Seattle, Washington 98104

                           jack@sheridanlawfirm.com

           7               justin@sheridanlawfirm.com
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           9     For the Defendants:



          10               Andrew Biggs

                           Assistant Attorney General

          11               Office of the Attorney General

                           800 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2000

          12               Seattle, Washington 98104-73188

                           andrew.biggs@atg.wa.gov

          13



          14

                 The Videographer:

          15

                           Alison Borgida

          16               SRS|Premier Realtime & Legal Video

                           2200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 425

          17               Seattle, Washington 98121



          18



          19     Also Present:



          20               Trooper Ryan Santhuff



          21
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          23
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           1            SEATTLE, WASHINGTON; FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2019



           2                               11:24 A.M.



           3                                --oOo--



           4                    THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We are now on the record at



           5     11:24 a.m., on Friday, September 27, 2019.  This is Volume 1,



           6     Media Unit 1 of the video recorded deposition of Travis



           7     Matheson.



           8                    All parties have agreed to waive the read on.



           9     So we will skip to counsel noting their appearances and



          10     affiliations for the record, and then the court reporter may



          11     swear in the witness.



          12                    MR. SHERIDAN:  This is Jack Sheridan,



          13     representing the plaintiff.  And in the room with me is



          14     Justin Abbasi, who is an attorney in our office.



          15                    MR. BIGGS:  Andrew Biggs, the State of



          16     Washington and Lieutenant Nobach.



          17



          18     CAPTAIN TRAVIS MATHESON,   deponent herein, having been.



          19                                first duly sworn on oath, was



          20                                examined and testified as



          21                                follows:



          22



          23                         E X A M I N A T I O N



          24     BY MR. SHERIDAN:



          25          Q.   Please state your full name for the record.
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           1          A.   Travis Matheson.



           2          Q.   And, Mr. Matheson, with whom are you employed?



           3          A.   With the Washington State Patrol.



           4          Q.   And how long have you been there?



           5          A.   About 27 years.



           6          Q.   Okay.  Are you retiring in the next year or two?



           7          A.   Maybe.



           8          Q.   All right.  Where do you currently live?



           9          A.   In Olympia.



          10                    MR. SHERIDAN:  Is this an ER 43 witness?  Is



          11     this a CR 43 witness?  I'm asking about managing agent.



          12                    MR. BIGGS:  You didn't ask for that, no.



          13                    MR. SHERIDAN:  No, no, I'm just thinking



          14     subpoena.



          15          Q.   I'll take your home address just in case.



          16               What's your home address?



          17          A.   4923 Cushman Road Northeast, Olympia, Washington



          18     98506.



          19          Q.   How long have you lived there?



          20          A.   Five or six years.



          21          Q.   What do you currently do for the Washington State



          22     Patrol?



          23          A.   I'm a captain in charge of our Property Management



          24     division.



          25          Q.   Before you had that job, what did you do?
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           1          A.   I was a captain in charge of our Human Resource



           2     division.



           3          Q.   How long did you have that job?



           4          A.   About 4 1/2 years.



           5          Q.   Who hired you into that job?



           6          A.   Chief Batiste.



           7          Q.   All right.  And were you a direct report to Chief



           8     Batiste at the time?



           9          A.   No.



          10          Q.   To whom did you report during that time?



          11          A.   There were two or three different assistant chiefs.



          12     Among them, Assistant Chief Shawn Berry, and, most recently,



          13     Assistant Chief Mark Lamoreaux, L-a-m-o-r-e-a-u-x.



          14          Q.   What did Assistant Chief Lamoreaux do, as far as



          15     you know?  What were his main duties?



          16          A.   So, as assistant chief, he's responsible for



          17     several other districts and divisions.  In his case, he was



          18     responsible for the Technical Services Bureau, which included



          19     Electronic Services division, technical -- or Information



          20     Technology division, the Training Academy, the Communications



          21     division, and the Human Resource department.



          22          Q.   Did you leave Human Resources on your own volition?



          23          A.   No.



          24          Q.   How did that come about?



          25          A.   The chief asked six captains to switch spots, about
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           1     three months ago, on July 1st.



           2          Q.   When you say the captain, do you mean Batiste?



           3          A.   No, the chief.



           4          Q.   Oh, the chief.



           5          A.   Chief Batiste, yes.  And I was one of the six



           6     captains that was switching spots.



           7          Q.   Who took your job?



           8          A.   Captain Monica Alexander.



           9          Q.   And is she related to Johnny Alexander?



          10          A.   Yes.



          11          Q.   And by marriage?



          12          A.   Yes.



          13          Q.   And how long -- if you know -- how long was she in



          14     the position?



          15          A.   In the Human Resource division?



          16          Q.   Yes.



          17          A.   Just a couple of months.  She recently retired.  So



          18     all of captains reported July 1st.  Well, I take that back.



          19     I think a few reported -- around July.



          20          Q.   In 2016 and 2017, when you were HR director, who



          21     were your customers?



          22          A.   My customers were primarily the employees of the



          23     State of Washington.



          24          Q.   Okay.  And were you the highest ranking Human



          25     Resources director in the State Patrol?
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           1          A.   Yes.



           2          Q.   And were you responsible for all policies and



           3     procedures related to Human Resources?



           4          A.   Yes.



           5          Q.   And all applicable statutes, like discrimination,



           6     retaliation, whistleblower, and all that?



           7          A.   Yes.



           8          Q.   And is it true that, in 2016 and 2017, you were a



           9     public official within the meaning of the whistleblower



          10     statute?



          11          A.   I'd have to look at the definition of public



          12     official within that statute.



          13          Q.   Sure.  Sure.  And under 42.40.020(7), the statute



          14     says, "A public official means the attorney general's



          15     designee or designees; the director, or equivalent thereof in



          16     the agency where the employee works; an appropriate number of



          17     individuals designated to receive whistleblower reports by



          18     the head of each agency; or the executive ethics board."



          19                    MR. BIGGS:  If that's a question, I object to



          20     the form of the question.



          21          Q.   Yeah.  And so, as you sit here today, do you recall



          22     if you were?



          23          A.   There is language in the State Patrol's regulation



          24     manual that talks about the whistleblower public officials, I



          25     believe.  And I think it's actually the Technical Services

�





                                                                             9



           1     Bureau assistant chief.



           2                    MR. SHERIDAN:  Okay.  Let me take a look at --



           3     so we have here a copy of the 2010 regulation manual that's



           4     applicable, and we also have the 2017 one.  We couldn't find



           5     any between.  So we're thinking that it's likely that this



           6     section hasn't changed.



           7                    So let's have the 2010 one marked first.



           8                    THE REPORTER:  Are we going to go with one?



           9                    MR. SHERIDAN:  One is fine, yeah.



          10                    THE REPORTER:  Can we go off the record for a



          11     second?



          12                    MR. SHERIDAN:  Yeah, let's go off the record a



          13     second.



          14                    THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We are now going off the



          15     record.  The time is 11:30 a.m.



          16                              (Exhibit 1 marked for



          17                               identification.)



          18                              (A brief recess was taken.)



          19                    THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We are back on record.  The



          20     time is 11:31 a.m.



          21          Q.   I am handing the witness what's been marked as



          22     Exhibit 1.  And this purports to be Rules of Conduct from the



          23     2010 version of the regulation manual.  I'd like to direct



          24     you over to -- the first two pages, addressed, "Whistleblower



          25     and Improper Governmental Action."  And, if you need to make
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           1     reference to them, go ahead.  I'd like to direct your



           2     attention to the third page, under Subsection C, about



           3     halfway down, less than halfway down.  And it says that



           4     the -- actually, I have to go back and start on the page



           5     before.  It says, "Referral to Washington State Auditor's



           6     Office."  And it says, "The following," at the bottom of page



           7     2, "are methods of reporting or submitting a whistleblower



           8     complaint," and then it has A, B, C, and it goes on.



           9               Under Subsection D, it says, "Directly to any state



          10     government public official to receive and document



          11     whistleblower complaints," and then it defines a public



          12     official.



          13               And then if you look at No. 3 it says,



          14     "Whistleblower complaints received by the deputy chief,



          15     Office of Professional Standards commander, or the Human



          16     Resources division commander shall be forwarded to the State



          17     Auditor's Office in 15 days."



          18               Would you agree that the Human Resource division



          19     commander in 2016 and 2017 was you?



          20                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection.  Objection to form of



          21     the question.



          22          Q.   You can answer.



          23          A.   Yes, I was the Human Resource division commander in



          24     2016 and 2017.



          25          Q.   Okay.  Great.  All right.

�





                                                                            11



           1               Did there come a time that you learned that Trooper



           2     Santhuff was complaining that he was being retaliated



           3     against?



           4          A.   Yes.



           5          Q.   And is it fair to say that was in 2016?



           6          A.   I don't remember exactly.



           7          Q.   Do you remember how the information came to you?



           8          A.   I don't specifically remember at this time, no.



           9          Q.   Okay.  And is it fair to say that -- you're aware



          10     that he actually transferred, right?



          11          A.   Can you clarify that?



          12          Q.   Yeah.  I'll say it a different way.



          13               It's true, is it not, that you met with Trooper



          14     Santhuff at his exit interview?  It was you and I think



          15     Lieutenant Matagi.



          16          A.   Matagi.



          17          Q.   Okay.  Thank you.



          18               And it's true, is it not, that, at that time, he



          19     explained to you facts about the sexual misconduct incident



          20     involving Lieutenant Nobach?



          21          A.   Nobach.



          22          Q.   Nobach, yes.



          23                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.



          24                    Go ahead.



          25          Q.   You can answer.
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           1          A.   I vaguely remember that, yes.



           2          Q.   Okay.  And before he told you about that, had you



           3     been aware of it?



           4          A.   I don't remember.



           5          Q.   Okay.  Did you have any conversations with -- is it



           6     captain or chief -- Captain Alexander about Santhuff and his



           7     retaliation complaints in 2016?



           8          A.   I had conversations with at the time Captain Johnny



           9     Alexander, yes.



          10          Q.   Okay.



          11          A.   I don't recall the conversation I had with Trooper



          12     Santhuff very well and whether those conversations with



          13     Captain Alexander were before or after that.



          14          Q.   Can you tell us, what did Captain Alexander say to



          15     you?



          16          A.   I don't recall those conversations specifically



          17     either, yeah.



          18          Q.   Okay.  Is it fair to say you understood, in talking



          19     to Captain Alexander, that Trooper Santhuff had made various



          20     claims about improper actions?



          21          A.   Yes, it's fair to say that.



          22          Q.   All right.  Did you ever do a whistleblower intake



          23     for him?



          24          A.   I'm not sure what that term "whistleblower intake"



          25     means.
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           1          Q.   Okay.  So let's take a look at the exhibit again.



           2     So looking at the third page.



           3          A.   Yes.



           4          Q.   It says that, "Whistleblower complaints received by



           5     the deputy chief or the Human Resource division commander



           6     shall be forwarded to the State Auditor's Office within 15



           7     days."  Did you ever forward any information about complaints



           8     made by Trooper Santhuff -- whether or not they came to you



           9     from Captain Alexander -- did you ever forward anything to



          10     the State Auditor's Office?



          11          A.   Not that I recall, no.



          12          Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that if -- do you have an



          13     understanding of the definition of improper governmental



          14     action?



          15                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.



          16          A.   That's a particularly relevant question these days.



          17     It's pretty broad, too.



          18          Q.   It is.  So take a look at page 1 of the exhibit,



          19     under subsection policy, and then Item No. A-4.  It says,



          20     "Improper governmental action is defined as any action by an



          21     employee undertaken in the performance of the employee's



          22     official duties that is a gross waste of public funds, a



          23     violation of federal or state law or rules, is of substantial



          24     and specific danger to the public health, gross



          25     mismanagement," and then there's a section about scientific
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           1     opinions that doesn't apply.



           2               But during the time that you were in charge of



           3     Human Resources, to your knowledge, did any such



           4     whistleblower complaint -- any complaints of improper



           5     governmental action reach your desk and get forwarded?



           6          A.   Sure.



           7               Not that I recall, to the level that's described



           8     here.



           9          Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that a claim of sexual



          10     harassment might be considered a violation of federal and



          11     state law under 4(b)?



          12                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.



          13          A.   Could you ask that again, please.  I was trying to



          14     read at the same time.



          15          Q.   Sure.  Would you agree that a claim of sexual



          16     harassment at work by a state employee would be considered to



          17     fall under 4(b), that it would be in violation of federal or



          18     state law?



          19                    MR. BIGGS:  Same objection.



          20          A.   Yeah, so a claim of sexual harassment, not



          21     necessarily.



          22          Q.   Okay.  And that would be -- have you had to address



          23     that issue in the whistleblower context during the time



          24     you've been HR manager?



          25          A.   What do you mean?
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           1          Q.   Have you had to make any decisions about whether or



           2     not a particular claim that's come to you sort of rose to the



           3     level of a whistleblower claim?



           4          A.   Not that I recall, no.



           5          Q.   Fair enough.  All right.



           6               So I know this is pushing the time of barrier quite



           7     a bit, but could you tell us everything that you remember



           8     that Captain Alexander told you about Santhuff's complaints.



           9          A.   I don't remember much.  They were consulting-type



          10     of meetings.



          11          Q.   Okay.  So he was asking you for advice?



          12          A.   Yeah, I think that's fair.



          13          Q.   All right.  Did he bring to your attention that at



          14     any time that Trooper Santhuff had alleged that his immediate



          15     boss, Lieutenant Nobach, was retaliating against him for



          16     having spoken out about sexual harassment?



          17          A.   Did Captain Alexander tell me that?



          18          Q.   Yeah.



          19          A.   I believe so, yes.



          20          Q.   Okay.  All right.  And is it fair to say that that



          21     happened in 2016?



          22          A.   I don't recall.



          23          Q.   You don't recall what month it was?



          24          A.   Correct.



          25          Q.   And was that more than one meeting or one meeting?
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           1          A.   There was more than one.



           2          Q.   Okay.  Do you document any of those type of



           3     meetings?



           4          A.   Sometimes, yes.



           5          Q.   If you did document the meeting, where would you



           6     have documented it?



           7          A.   I would have documented that in a computer program



           8     that we refer to as Remedy.



           9          Q.   Okay.



          10          A.   And we have a harassment file within there.



          11          Q.   Okay.  And so who had the authority to start a



          12     particular file?



          13          A.   Myself, Lieutenant Matagi, Dr. Lastimato, and Deb



          14     Tindall.



          15          Q.   And are those all Human Resource personnel?



          16          A.   Correct.



          17          Q.   Are any of them civilians, as opposed to State



          18     Patrol?



          19          A.   Yes.



          20          Q.   Which ones?



          21          A.   Myself and Lieutenant Matagi are commissioned, and



          22     Dr. Lastimato and Deb Tindall are civilians.



          23          Q.   In this case, do you recall whether or not you



          24     started a harassment file?



          25          A.   There was a file created, yes.
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           1          Q.   Pertaining to Santhuff?



           2          A.   Correct.



           3          Q.   Did you create it?



           4          A.   I don't remember.



           5          Q.   So having created the file, under your policies and



           6     procedures, is there any obligation to investigate?



           7          A.   So the Human Resource division doesn't do



           8     investigations into policy violations.  Our role is to ensure



           9     the employees are safe.  The Office of Professional Standards



          10     is the entity within the Washington State Patrol that



          11     conducts investigations, looking for or determining if



          12     there's a policy violation.



          13          Q.   Is there any requirement that HR have any oversight



          14     of their investigations?



          15          A.   There's no requirement that there's oversight by



          16     HR.  There is certainly coordination and communication.



          17          Q.   Okay.  All right.  I wanted to show you -- we don't



          18     need to mark them as exhibits because they're already



          19     exhibits, but -- so we've deposed Captain Alexander, and this



          20     is Exhibits 4 and 3 from that deposition.  These things are



          21     referred to as 095s.  Does that have meaning for you, an 095?



          22          A.   Yes.



          23          Q.   Okay.  Let me give you a chance to read both of



          24     them.  It's fairly quick, and then let me know when you've



          25     had a chance to look.
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           1          A.   Okay.



           2          Q.   All right.  Have you ever seen these documents



           3     before?



           4          A.   Yes.



           5          Q.   Okay.  Could you tell us when.



           6          A.   Well, shortly after they were issued, so to speak,



           7     I think they were provided to the Human Resource division to



           8     include in the file that I referred to in Remedy.



           9          Q.   Okay.  So, basically, is it fair to say that the



          10     harassment file you've been discussing was probably created



          11     way back in March of 2016?



          12          A.   Yes, it's fair to say that.



          13          Q.   Do these files have names on them?



          14          A.   They have names within them.  They have a tracking



          15     number.  Yes.



          16          Q.   So what I'm trying to understand --



          17          A.   Yes.



          18          Q.   Was it created identifying Trooper Santhuff as the



          19     person who is allegedly the victim?



          20          A.   I don't recall.  There are different roles for



          21     individuals within each file.  It's a computer dropdown.  And



          22     I don't recall the role that was given to Trooper Santhuff in



          23     this particular incident.



          24          Q.   Do you also get involved in labor-related issues as



          25     the Human Resource director?

�





                                                                            19



           1          A.   Yes.



           2          Q.   So one of the questions I have is:  Did you have an



           3     understanding that it was Captain Alexander who made the



           4     decision to provide these 095s to Ms. Biscay and to



           5     Lieutenant Nobach?



           6          A.   I don't remember that specifically.



           7          Q.   Is it true, based on your understanding of the



           8     contracts with the various unions, that, once Alexander gave



           9     Nobach this 095, Nobach could not be further disciplined?



          10          A.   So this is not considered a form of discipline in



          11     the contract.  So there's some granularity in that question.



          12          Q.   Okay.  So it's sort of like, in the law, we talk



          13     about double jeopardy?



          14          A.   Yes.



          15          Q.   Can an 095 have a double jeopardy effect on more



          16     serious punishment in your experience?



          17                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.



          18          A.   Yes.



          19          Q.   Okay.  Did Alexander talk to you about his intent



          20     to give this so that no additional discipline could be given?



          21                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.



          22          A.   I don't recall that.



          23          Q.   All right.  Can you tell us whether or not you were



          24     consulted before the 095s were given?



          25          A.   I don't remember.
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           1          Q.   Do you recall whether or not the way that -- do you



           2     recall whether or not Alexander presented to you a picture of



           3     Ms. Biscay basically rubbing her breasts into the head of



           4     Lieutenant Nobach?



           5          A.   Is the question:  Do I recall Captain Alexander



           6     relaying that?



           7          Q.   Yes.



           8          A.   I believe so.



           9          Q.   And do you recall whether or not he had suggested



          10     whether there was an appropriate level of discipline that



          11     ought to be applied?



          12          A.   I do not recall that.



          13          Q.   Does your organization do any investigations as HR?



          14          A.   So, again, the term "investigation" is something



          15     that's typically reserved for the Office of Professional



          16     Standards in the State Patrol.  Again, our role is to ensure



          17     safety.  So we will make phone calls to employees and to



          18     people involved in that effort.  So I don't know if you call



          19     that an investigation or not.



          20          Q.   Fair enough.



          21               Have you ever been a whistleblower?



          22          A.   I don't think so, no.



          23          Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.  Okay.



          24               Have you yourself personally witnessed any abuse of



          25     power within your organization that you reported?
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           1          A.   No.



           2          Q.   Have you ever been disciplined for anything?



           3          A.   Yes.



           4          Q.   What type of things?



           5          A.   Boy, I believe I had a courtesy complaint when I



           6     was a trooper.



           7          Q.   Meaning that a citizen said that you weren't



           8     courteous?



           9          A.   Correct.



          10          Q.   Okay.



          11          A.   And I think I had a speeding complaint as a



          12     trooper, meaning that someone called in that they saw a fast



          13     patrol car and it was me.



          14          Q.   Okay.



          15          A.   I think that's it.



          16          Q.   Okay.  And since you've gotten up to captain,



          17     anything as a captain or lieutenant or any of that?



          18          A.   No.  I've made mistakes, but I have not been



          19     formally disciplined.



          20          Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.



          21               Let me just show you the 2017 one, since that will



          22     help close the circle.



          23          A.   Yeah.



          24                              (Exhibit 2 marked for



          25                               identification.)
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           1          Q.   So the 2017 one, it's again on page 3.



           2          A.   Yes.



           3          Q.   And it says at the bottom, Item 3, is,



           4     "Whistleblower complaints received by the deputy chief,



           5     Office of Professional Standards, or Human Resource division



           6     commander shall be forwarded to the State Auditor's Office."



           7               So we concluded from that that probably between



           8     2010 and 2017 this regulation had not been changed.



           9               Do you have any knowledge that this item that I've



          10     just read to you may have fallen out of grace in 2016 or some



          11     other time?



          12          A.   I do not.



          13                    MR. SHERIDAN:  Okay.  Thanks.  All right.



          14     Let's take a quick break.



          15                    MR. BIGGS:  Okay.



          16                    THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We are going off record.



          17                    The time now is 11:48 a.m.



          18                              (A brief recess was taken.)



          19                    THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  We are back on record.



          20                    The time is 11:50 a.m.



          21          Q.   As HR manager, have you ever had a situation where



          22     a manager told an employee that they should not go outside of



          23     their organization to make a complaint?



          24                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.



          25          A.   Can you be more specific?
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           1          Q.   Sure.



           2          A.   Like give me an example?



           3          Q.   Yeah.



           4               So there's been some testimony that Trooper



           5     Santhuff was basically told to sort of not repeat these



           6     allegations outside of our little -- outside of Aviation.



           7          A.   Okay.



           8          Q.   Is there any policy or procedure that would



           9     prohibit him from doing that?



          10                    MR. BIGGS:  Objection to form of the question.



          11          A.   No.



          12          Q.   In fact, isn't there a duty among -- all the way up



          13     through the supervisory chain -- that, if they hear about



          14     sexual harassment, they need to report it?



          15          A.   Yes.



          16          Q.   How about, are there any policies or procedures



          17     that would prohibit an employee from going to the media if



          18     they wanted to, that you know of?



          19          A.   We do have policies regarding employee interaction



          20     with the media, yes.



          21          Q.   Where would they be found?



          22          A.   They're in the regulation manual at the State



          23     Patrol.



          24          Q.   All right.



          25          A.   Not the sections we have here.
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           1          Q.   Are you familiar with them, that you could



           2     summarize them?



           3          A.   I'm not comfortable doing that.  Sorry.



           4          Q.   Sure.



           5          A.   No, I'm not familiar enough, no.



           6                    MR. SHERIDAN:  That's an honest answer.  Thank



           7     you.  All right.  I have no further questions.  Thanks for



           8     your time.



           9                    MR. BIGGS:  No questions.  Thank you.



          10                    Signature is reserved.



          11                    THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  One second.  I will take us



          12     off record.  All right.  That concludes the video deposition



          13     of Travis Matheson.



          14                    We are now going off record at 11:52 a.m.



          15                         (Signature reserved.)



          16                  (Deposition concluded at 11:52 a.m.)



          17
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           2

                 STATE OF WASHINGTON )

           3                         )  ss.

                 COUNTY OF KING      )

           4
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           6



           7               I, CAPTAIN TRAVIS MATHESON, hereby declare under



           8     penalty of perjury that I have read the foregoing deposition



           9     and that the testimony contained herein is a true and correct



          10     transcript of my testimony, noting the corrections attached.
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                                    CAPTAIN TRAVIS MATHESON

          14



          15

                 Date:
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          19
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           1                         C E R T I F I C A T E



           2     STATE OF WASHINGTON )

                                     )  ss

           3     COUNTY OF KING      )



           4



           5               I, the undersigned Washington Certified Court

                 Reporter, pursuant to RCW 5.28.010, authorized to administer

           6     oaths and affirmations in and for the State of Washington, do

                 hereby certify:  That the foregoing deposition of the witness

           7     named herein was taken stenographically before me and reduced

                 to a typed format under my direction;

           8

                           That, according to CR 30(e), the witness was given

           9     the opportunity to examine, read and sign the deposition

                 after same was transcribed, unless indicated in the record

          10     that the review was waived;



          11               That I am not a relative or employee of any

                 attorney or counsel or participant and that I am not

          12     financially or otherwise interested in the action or the

                 outcome herein;

          13

                           That the deposition, as transcribed, is a full,

          14     true and correct transcript of the testimony, including

                 questions and answers and all objections, motions and

          15     examinations and said transcript was prepared pursuant to the

                 Washington Administrative Code 308-14-135 preparation

          16     guidelines.



          17



          18                         Wade J. Johnson, Certified Court

                                     Reporter 2574 for the State of Washington

          19                         residing at Seattle, Washington.

                                     My CCR certification expires on 09/18/20.
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           2                        

                                          

           3

                                        October 4, 2019

           4

                 To:  Andrew Biggs

           5          Assistant Attorney General

                      Office of the Attorney General

           6          800 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2000

                      Seattle, Washington 98104-73188

           7          andrew.biggs@atg.wa.gov



           8     Case Name:  Santhuff vs. State of Washington, et al.

                 Deposition of:  CAPTAIN TRAVIS MATHESON

           9     Date Taken:  September 27, 2019

                 Court Reporter:  Wade J. Johnson, RPR

          10



          11     This letter is to advise you of the following:



          12     ___X__  Signature was reserved.  The Affidavit and correction

                         sheet are being forwarded to you in electronic form.

          13             Please have the deponent review the transcript, note

                         any corrections on the corrections page, and return

          14             the signed affidavit and correction page to us within

                         30 days of this notice.  According to Court Rule 30(e),

          15             the deposition affidavit should be signed within

                         thirty (30) days or signature is considered waived.

          16

                 ______  Signature was reserved.  The transcript is ready for

          17             review and signature.  Your office did not order a

                         copy of the deposition transcript.  Please contact

          18             our office to make an appointment for review.

                         Signature must be completed within 30 days of this

          19             notice.



          20

                                       (Sent without signature to avoid delay)

          21                            Wade J. Johnson, RPR



          22



          23     cc:  John P. Sheridan
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